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AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS
(unaudited)

  March 31,  December 31,  

  2007  2006  

Assets
     

Current Assets:
     

Cash and cash equivalents
 

$ 14,964,915
 

$ 20,159,201
 

Short-term securities—available-for-sale
 

12,081,196
 

12,992,931
 

Accounts receivable
 

551,783
 

51,498
 

Other current assets
 

709,486
 

736,283
 

Total Current Assets
 

28,307,380
 

33,939,913
 

      
Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of $10,603,407 and $10,174,712

 

4,103,482
 

4,329,583
 

Patent Costs, net of accumulated amortization of $1,533,630 and $1,496,699
 

2,611,476
 

2,558,541
 

Other Assets
 

284,709
 

34,709
 

Total Assets
 

$ 35,307,047
 

$ 40,862,746
 

      
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

     

Current Liabilities:
     

Accounts payable
 

$ 1,889,929
 

$ 1,401,584
 

Accrued employee compensation
 

1,021,336
 

1,371,353
 

Other liabilities
 

1,435,490
 

377,908
 

Total Current Liabilities
 

4,346,755
 

3,150,845
 

      
Commitments and Contingencies

     

      
Shareholders’ Equity:

     

Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding
 

—
 

—
 

Common stock, $.0001 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized; 53,282,841 and 53,182,841 issued and
outstanding

 

5,328
 

5,318
 

Additional paid-in capital
 

244,382,818
 

241,409,421
 

Accumulated other comprehensive income
 

16,377
 

18,418
 



Deficit accumulated during the development stage
 

(213,444,231) (203,721,256)
Total Shareholders’ Equity

 

30,960,292
 

37,711,901
 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
 

$ 35,307,047
 

$ 40,862,746
  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(unaudited)

      July 22, 1980  

  Three months ended March 31,  (Inception) to  

  2007  2006  March 31, 2007  

        
Revenues from license fees, grants and research contracts

 

$ 536,042
 

$ 65,962
 

$ 10,516,861
 

        
Operating expenses:

       

Research and development
 

6,317,641
 

6,763,245
 

153,964,856
 

General and administrative
 

4,303,885
 

2,821,726
 

45,124,413
 

Acquired in-process research and development
 

—
 

—
 

19,545,028
 

 

 

10,621,526
 

9,584,971
 

218,634,297
 

        
Other income (loss):

       

Interest income, net
 

362,509
 

457,859
 

7,812,051
 

Realized gain on sale of short-term securities—available-for-sale
 

—
 

—
 

3,862,502
 

Write-down of short-term securities—available-for-sale
 

—
 

—
 

(17,001,348)
 

 

 

362,509
 

457,859
 

(5,326,795)
 

        
Net loss

 

$ (9,722,975)
 

$ (9,061,150)
 

$ (213,444,231)
 

        
Net loss per share - basic and diluted

 

$ (0.18)
 

$ (0.18)
   

        
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing basic and

diluted loss per share
 

53,241,730
 

51,715,050
    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(unaudited)

      For the Period  

      July 22, 1980  

  Three months ended March 31,  (Inception) to  

  2007  2006  March 31, 2007  

Cash flows from operating activities:
       

Net loss
 

$ (9,722,975) $ (9,061,150) $ (213,444,231)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows used in operating activities:

       

Depreciation and amortization
 

479,630
 

525,141
 

13,299,869
 

Loss on disposal of assets
 

53,498
 

164,253
 

368,676
 

Realized gain on sale of short-term securities—available-for-sale
 

—
 

—
 

(3,862,502)
Write-down of short-term securities—available-for-sale

 

—
 

—
 

17,001,348
 

Issuance of common stock to vendors
 

300,000
 

700,000
 

1,675,000
 

Compensation expense on issuance of common stock and partnership units
 

—
 

—
 

861,655
 

Compensation expense to non-employees on issuance of options and warrants to
purchase common stock or partnership units

 

312,637
 

525,126
 

2,955,690
 

Stock-based compensation
 

2,360,770
 

1,937,271
 

7,242,240
 

Conversion of interest accrued to common stock
 

—
 

—
 

7,860
 

Acquired in-process research and development
 

—
 

—
 

19,545,028
 

(Increase) decrease in:
       

Accounts receivable and other current assets
 

(473,488) 281,612
 

(1,261,269)
Other assets

 

—
 

2,900
 

(34,709)
Net increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued employee compensation, and other

liabilities
 

1,195,910
 

(363,169) 4,641,755
 

Net cash used in operating activities
 

(5,494,018) (5,288,016) (151,003,590)



        
Cash flows from investing activities:

       

Purchase of property and equipment
 

(464,029) (194,546) (15,762,540)
Patent costs

 

(145,933) (94,999) (4,620,963)
Purchase of marketable securities

 

—
 

(1,026,087) (112,865,796)
Sale of marketable securities

 

909,694
 

902,117
 

105,710,131
 

Acquisition costs
 

—
 

—
 

(2,377,616)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

 

299,732
 

(413,515) (29,916,784)
        
Cash flows from financing activities:

       

Proceeds from sale of common stock, warrants, and partnership units, net of offering
costs, and exercise of options and warrants

 

—
 

7,971,098
 

196,270,726
 

Buyback of common stock pursuant to rescission offering
 

—
 

—
 

(288,795)
Withdrawal of partnership net assets

 

—
 

—
 

(176,642)
Issuance of convertible debt

 

—
 

—
 

80,000
 

Net cash provided by financing activities
 

—
 

7,971,098
 

195,885,289
 

        
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

 

(5,194,286) 2,269,567
 

14,964,915
 

        
Cash and cash equivalents:

       

Beginning of period
 

20,159,201
 

34,597,734
 

—
 

End of period
 

$ 14,964,915
 

$ 36,867,301
 

$ 14,964,915
 

        
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES AND

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
       

Short-term securities—available-for-sale received in connection with the private offering
 

$ —
 

$ —
 

$ 17,897,000
 

Change in unrealized gain on short-term securities—available-for-sale
 

$ (2,041) $ 1,890
 

$ 16,377
 

Issuance of common stock and warrants in satisfaction of liabilities
 

$ —
 

$ 175,000
 

$ 545,000
  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Note 1. Basis of Presentation
The financial information included herein for the three-month period ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 and the financial information as of March 31, 2007 is
unaudited; however, such information reflects all adjustments consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, which, in the opinion of management, are
necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods. The financial information as of
December 31, 2006 is derived from AVI BioPharma, Inc.’s (the “Company’s”) Form 10-K. The interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company’s Form 10-K. The results of operations for the interim periods presented are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

Stock-based compensation costs are generally based on the fair value calculated from the Black-Scholes option-pricing model on the date of grant for stock options
and on the date of enrollment for the Plan. The fair value of stock grants is amortized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of
the grants. Stock options granted to employees are service-based and typically vest over four years.

The fair market values of stock options granted during the periods presented were measured on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model,
with the following weighted average assumptions:

Three Months Ended March 31,  2007  2006  

Risk-free interest rate
 

4.91% 4.07%
Expected dividend yield

 

0% 0%
Expected lives

 

8.0 years
 

9.3 years
 

Expected volatility
 

90% 91%
 

The risk-free interest rate is estimated using an average of treasury bill interest rates. The expected dividend yield is zero as the Company has not paid any
dividends to date and does not expect to pay dividends in the future. The expected lives are estimated using expected and historical exercise behavior. The
expected volatility is estimated using historical calculated volatility and considers factors such as future events or circumstances that could impact volatility.

As part of the requirements of FSAS 123R, the Company is required to estimate potential
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forfeiture of stock grants and adjust compensation cost recorded accordingly. The estimate of forfeitures will be adjusted over the requisite service period to the
extent that actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, from such estimates. Changes in estimated forfeitures will be recognized through a cumulative catch-
up in the period of change and will also impact the amount of stock compensation expense to be recognized in future periods.



A summary of the Company’s stock option compensation activity with respect to the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2007 follows:

Stock Options  Shares  

Weighted
Average

Exercisable
Price  

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term  

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value  

Outstanding at January 1, 2007
 

5,571,470
 

$ 5.12
     

Granted
 

1,137,548
 

$ 2.78
     

Exercised
 

—
 

$ —
     

Canceled or expired
 

(43,646) $ 5.58
     

Outstanding at March 31, 2007
 

6,665,372
 

$ 4.72
 

6.07
 

$ (12,780,458)
          
Vested at March 31, 2007 and expected to vest

 

6,621,056
 

$ 4.72
 

6.05
 

$ (12,720,904)
          
Exercisable at March 31, 2007

 

4,449,582
 

$ 5.00
 

4.66
 

$ (9,802,794)
 

The weighted average fair value per share of stock-based payments granted to employees during the three months ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006
was $2.25 and $6.25, respectively. During the same periods, the total intrinsic value of stock options exercised were $0 and $729,759, and the total fair value
of stock options that vested were $1,303,398 and $1,103,771, respectively.

As of March 31, 2007, there was $4,922,460 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted
under the Plan. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, no stock options were exercised. The Company is obligated to issue shares from the 2002 Equity Incentive Plan reserve
upon the exercise of stock options. The Company does not currently expect to repurchase shares from any source to satisfy its obligations under the Plan.

The following are the stock-based compensation costs recognized in the Company’s statements of operations:

 

 

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007  

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2006  

Research and development
 

$ 397,037
 

$ 539,497
 

General and administrative
 

906,361
 

564,274
 

Total
 

$ 1,303,398
 

$ 1,103,771
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The 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) provides that eligible employees may contribute, through payroll, deductions, up to 10% of their earnings toward the
purchase of the Company’s Common Stock at 85% of the fair market value at specific dates. On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R, which requires
the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share based payment awards made to the Company’s employees and directors related to the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, based on estimated fair values. During the first quarter of 2007 the total compensation expense for participants in the ESPP was $7,849
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with a weighted average estimated fair value per share of $1.26, expected life of six months, risk free interest rate of
5.17%, volatility of 70.90%, and no dividend yield. During the first quarter of 2006 the total compensation expense for participants in the ESPP was $15,118
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with a weighted average estimated fair value per share of $1.07, expected life of six months, risk free interest
rate of 3.5%, volatility of 73.21%, and no dividend yield. At March 31, 2007, 248,144 shares remain available for purchase through the plan and there were 86
employees eligible to participate in the plan, of which 29 were participants.

On March 27, 2007, in connection with his resignation, the Company entered into a Separation and Release Agreement with AVI’s former Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. Pursuant to this agreement, he may exercise his previously granted options until March 28, 2010. This modification of these stock options in
the first quarter of 2007 increased compensation costs by $1,057,372.

On March 15, 2006 unvested stock options for nine employees in the Company’s Colorado facility were accelerated. These employees joined Cook Group Inc.
in April 2006. The acceleration of these stock options in the first quarter of 2006 increased compensation costs by $833,500.

During the first quarter of 2007 and 2006, the total compensation expense for stock-based compensation was $2,360,770 and $1,937,271, respectively.

The Company records the fair value of stock options granted to non-employees in exchange for services in accordance with EITF 96-18 “Accounting for
Equity Instruments That are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.” The fair value of the options
granted is expensed when the measurement date is known. The performance for services was satisfied on the grant date for stock options granted to non-
employees. The total fair value of the options granted to non-employees during the three months ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 was $312,637 and
$525,126 which was expensed to research and development, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies. In the normal course of business, the Company may be named as a party to various legal claims, actions and complaints,
including matters
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involving employment, intellectual property, effects from the use of drugs utilizing our technology, or others. It is impossible to predict with certainty whether
any resulting liability would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.



Financial Instruments. The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and other
current monetary assets and liabilities approximate fair value because of the immediate or short- term maturity of these financial instruments.

License Arrangements.  License arrangements may consist of non-refundable upfront license fees, data transfer fees, research reimbursement payments,
exclusive licensed rights to patented or patent pending compounds, technology access fees, various performance or sales milestones and future product royalty
payments. Some of these arrangements are multiple element arrangements.

The Company defers recognition of non-refundable upfront fees if it has continuing performance obligations without which the technology, right, product or
service conveyed in conjunction with the non-refundable fee has no utility to the licensee that is separate and independent of Company performance under the
other elements of the arrangement. In addition, if the Company has continuing involvement through research and development services that are required
because its know-how and expertise related to the technology is proprietary to the Company, or can only be performed by the Company, then such up-front
fees are deferred and recognized over the period of continuing involvement.

Payments related to substantive, performance-based milestones in a research and development arrangement are recognized as revenue upon the achievement of
the milestones as specified in the underlying agreements when they represent the culmination of the earnings process.

Government Research Contract Revenue.  The Company recognizes revenues from federal research contracts during the period in which the related
expenditures are incurred.

Income Taxes.  In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109” (“FIN 48”).  FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing the recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet
before being recognized in the financial statements.  It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure, and transition.  The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for the Company as of January 1, 2007, with cumulative effect, if any, of applying
FIN 48 recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings in the year of adoption.  The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, which did not have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.  See Note 7.

Note 2.  Liquidity
The Company is in the development stage. Since its inception in 1980 through March 31, 2007, the Company has incurred losses of approximately $213 million,
substantially all of which resulted from expenditures related to research and development, general and administrative expenses, non-cash write-downs in 2002 of
$4,478,260 and in 2001 of $12,523,088 on short-term securities—available-for-sale that had an other than temporary impairment as defined by SEC accounting
rules and a one-time charge of $19,545,028 for acquired in-process research and development reflecting the acquisition of ImmunoTherapy Corporation. The
Company has not generated any material revenue from product sales to date, and there can be no assurance that revenues from product sales will be achieved.
Moreover, even if the Company does achieve revenues from product sales, the Company expects to incur operating losses over the next several years.

The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. The Company’s ability to achieve a profitable level of
operations in the future will depend in large part on completing product development of its antisense products,
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obtaining regulatory approvals for such products, and bringing these products to market. During the period required to develop these products, the Company will
require substantial additional financing. There is no assurance that such financing will be available when needed or that the Company’s planned products will be
commercially successful. The Company believes it has sufficient cash to fund operations through 2007. For 2007, the Company expects expenditures for
operations, including collaborative efforts and GMP facilities to be approximately $25 to $28 million. Expenditures for 2007 could increase if the Company
undertakes additional collaborative efforts. If necessary, however, the Company’s management has the ability to significantly curtail certain expenditures
because a significant amount of the Company’s costs are variable.

In December 2006, the Company announced the execution of a two-year $28 million research contract with the Defense Threat Reduction Agency (DTRA), an
agency of the United States Department of Defense (DoD). The contract is directed toward funding the Company’s development of antisense therapeutics to
treat the effects of Ebola, Marburg and Junin hemorrhagic viruses, which are seen as biological warfare and bioterrorism agents. Funding under this contract is
expected over two years, with approximately $18.0 million committed in the first year, and the remainder anticipated in the second year.  In the first quarter of
2007, the Company recognized $485,292 in research contract revenue from this contract.

In January 2006, the Company announced that the final version of the 2006 defense appropriations act had been approved, which included an allocation of $11.0
million to fund its ongoing defense-related programs. Net of government administrative costs, it is anticipated that the Company will receive up to $9.8 million
under this allocation. The Company’s NEUGENE  technology is expected to be used to continue developing therapeutic agents against Ebola, Marburg and
dengue viruses, as well as to continue developing countermeasures for anthrax exposure and antidotes for ricin toxin. The Company has received signed contracts
for three of the projects, with government expenditures of $7.1 million. The Company continues to work with the government to define the scope of work to be
performed on the fourth project, dengue viruses. The Company expects that funding under these contracts will be received over the next 12 months as it seeks
reimbursement for its research under the contracts, and such funding has not yet been received and is not reflected in the Company’s 2007 first quarter financial
statements.

The likelihood of the long-term success of the Company must be considered in light of the expenses, difficulties and delays frequently encountered in the
development and commercialization of new pharmaceutical products, competitive factors in the marketplace as well as the burdensome regulatory environment in
which the Company operates. There can be no assurance that the Company will ever achieve significant revenues or profitable operations. In this regard, the
Company’s long term success may be adversely affected by the resignation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer in March 2007, as the Company must find a
permanent CEO.

Note 3.  Earnings Per Share
Basic EPS is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period and diluted EPS is computed using the weighted
average number of common shares and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding.  Given that the Company is in a loss position, there is no difference
between basic EPS and diluted EPS since the common stock equivalents would be antidilutive.

®
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Three Months Ended March 31,  2007  2006  

Net loss
 

$(9,722,975) $ (9,061,150)
Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents

outstanding:
     

Weighted average number of common shares Outstanding for computing basic earnings per
share

 

53,241,730
 

51,715,050
 

Dilutive effect of warrants and stock options after application of the treasury stock method
 

*
 

*
 

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing diluted earnings per
share

 

53,241,730
 

51,715,050
 

Net loss per share - basic and diluted
 

$ (0.18) $ (0.18)

*  Warrants and stock options to purchase 15,173,475 and 17,214,065 shares of common stock as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were excluded from
the earnings per share calculation as their effect would have been antidilutive.

Note 4.  Comprehensive Income and securities available for sale
Comprehensive income (loss) includes charges or credits to equity that did not result from transactions with shareholders. The Company’s only component of
“other comprehensive income (loss)” is unrealized gain (loss) on cash equivalents and short-term securities—available-for-sale. Accordingly, such investment
securities are stated on the balance sheet at their fair market value. The Company classifies its investment securities with an original maturity of three months or
less from the date of purchase as cash equivalents. The Company classifies its investment securities with an original maturity of more than three months from the
date of purchase as short-term securities—available-for-sale. At March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Company’s investments in marketable securities had
gross unrealized gains of $16,377 and $18,418, respectively. The unrealized difference between the adjusted cost and the fair market value of these securities has
been reflected as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. The following table sets forth the calculation of comprehensive income for the periods indicated:

 

Three Months Ended
March 31,  

  2007  2006  

Net loss
 

$(9,722,975) $ (9,061,150)
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities

 

(2,041) 1,890
 

 Total comprehensive loss
 

$(9,725,016) $ (9,059,260)
 

Note 5. Significant Agreements
On January 8, 2007, the Company announced that it had entered into a cross-license agreement with Eleos Inc. for the development of antisense drugs
targeting p53, a well-studied human protein that controls cellular response to genetic damage. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company is granting
Eleos Inc. an exclusive license to the
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Company’s NEUGENE  third-generation antisense chemistry to treat cancer with p53-related drugs. In return, Eleos Inc. is granting the Company an exclusive
license to its patents for treatment of most viral diseases with drugs that target p53. The companies are sharing rights in other medical fields where targeting
p53 may be therapeutically useful. Each company will make milestone payments and royalty payments to the other on development and sales of products that
utilize technology licensed under the agreement. In addition, Eleos Inc. is making an upfront payment of $500,000 to the Company. The Company recognized
$31,250 in license fees in the first quarter of 2007; the remaining $468,750 has been classified as deferred revenue.

In February 2007, the Company issued 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock with a market value of $300,000 for consulting services, which was
expensed to research and development. 

On March 27, 2007, the Board of Directors appointed K.Michael Forrest as interim Chief Executive Officer and set his compensation as follows: (a) annual
salary - $385,000 and (b) options to acquire 300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The stock options granted to Mr. Forrest become exercisable
starting one month after the grant date, with one-twelfth of the options becoming exercisable at that time and an additional one-twelfth of the options becoming
exercisable each month thereafter. The exercise price is $2.45 per share.

On March 27, 2007, in connection with the resignation of AVI’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Company entered into a Separation and Release
Agreement, pursuant to which the former Chairman and CEO is entitled to receive his base compensation for 18 months ($562,500 in the aggregate)
and medical insurance for the same 18 month period and may exercise his previously granted options until March 28, 2010. The Company recognized
$1,619,872 in total compensation expense to general and administrative in the first quarter of 2007, including $562,500 in cash compensation and $1,057,372
in SFAS 123R expenses.

Note 6.  Other current assets
Amounts included in other current assets are as follows:

 March 31, 2007  December 31, 2006  

      
Prepaid expenses

 

$ 449,263
 

$ 480,003
 

Prepaid rents
 

102,837
 

100,838
 

Restricted cash
 

157,386
 

155,442
 

      
Other current assets

 

$ 709,486
 

$ 736,283
  

®



Starting in April 2006, the Company was required to pledge $150,000 as collateral for company credit cards issued to certain employees. The Company classifies
this amount as restricted cash. As of March 31, 2007, restricted cash including accrued interest was $157,386. The remaining components of other current assets
include normally occurring prepaid expenses and rents.

Note 7.  Income Taxes

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, which did not materially impact its consolidated financial statements.  No unrecognized tax
benefits were recorded as of the date of adoption. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company did not recognize any liability for unrecognized tax
benefits. There are no unrecognized tax benefits included in the balance sheet that would, if recognized, affect the effective tax rate.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. The Company had no accrual for interest or
penalties on its balance sheet at March 31, 2007 and at December 31, 2006, and has not recognized interest and/or penalties in the statement of operations for the
three months ended March 31, 2007.

At January 1, 2007, the Company had net deferred tax assets of $79,398,000. The deferred tax assets are primarily composed of federal and state tax net operating
loss carryforwards, federal and state R&D credit carryforwards, share-based compensation expense and intangibles.  Due to uncertainties surrounding its ability to
generate future taxable income to realize these assets, a full valuation allowance has been established to offset its net deferred tax asset.  Additionally, the Internal
Revenue Code rules under Section 382 could limit the future use of its net operationg loss and R&D credit carryforwards to offset future taxable income based on
ownership changes and the value of the Company’s stock.

Note 8.  Subsequent Events
On April 19, 2007, the Company entered into a real property purchase agreement with WKL Investments Airport, LLC (“WKL”) to purchase a parcel of real
property at 1749 SW Airport Avenue, Corvallis, Oregon 97330, including improvements situated on the land and
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intangibles related to the land. Under the terms of the real property purchase agreement, the total purchase price of the property is $3,300,000. The Company paid
the purchase price as follows: paid $250,000 in an earnest money deposit, assumed two loans secured by the property in the amount of $2,196,208, paid $125,000
in immediately available funds, and issued 270,758 shares of AVI common stock (at $2.77 per share or $750,000 in the aggregate) to WKL in exchange for the
property. As of March 31, 2007, the Company recorded $250,000 in an earnest money deposit to other assets.

On May 2, 2007, the Company entered into a cross-license and collaboration agreement with Ercole Biotech, Inc. (“Ercole”) to develop drugs that may prove
effective in treating the genetic diseases Duchenne muscular dystrophy and beta thalassemia and a stock purchase agreement in connection therewith. Under the
terms of the stock purchase agreement, Ercole issued AVI shares of Ercole Series A—2 Preferred Stock, and the Company issued to Ercole 73,607 shares of the
Company’s common stock with a market value of $200,000.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations

This section should be read in conjunction with the same titled section contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC for the year ended
December 31, 2006 and the “Risk Factors” contained in such report.

Forward-Looking Information

The Financial Statements and Notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the following discussion. The discussion in this Form 10-Q contains certain
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Forward looking
statements are identified by such words as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate” and words of similar import. All statements other than historical or current facts,
including, without limitation, statements about our business strategy, plans and objectives of management and our future prospects, are forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the results of research and development efforts, the
success of raising funds in the current offering or future offerings under our current shelf registration, the results of pre-clinical and clinical testing, the effect
of regulation by FDA and other agencies, the impact of competitive products, product development, commercialization and technological difficulties, and other
risks detailed in the Company’s Securities and Exchange Commission filings, that could cause actual results to differ materially from the expected results
reflected in such forward looking statements.

Overview

From our inception in 1980, we have devoted our resources primarily to fund our research and development efforts. We have been unprofitable since inception
and, other than limited interest, license fees, grants and research contracts, we have had no material revenues from the sale of products or other sources, other
than from government grants and research contracts, and we do not expect material revenues for the foreseeable future. We expect to continue to incur losses
for the foreseeable future as we continue to expand our research and development efforts and enter additional collaborative efforts. As of March 31, 2007, the
Company’s accumulated deficit was $213,444,231.
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Results of Operations

Revenues, from license fees, grants and research contracts, increased to $536,042 in the first quarter of 2007 from $65,962 in the comparable period in 2006,
due to increases in research contracts revenues of $485,292 and license fees of $31,250, partially offset by decreases in grants revenues of $46,462.

Operating expenses increased to $10,621,526 in the first quarter of 2007 from $9,584,971 in the first quarter of 2006 due to increases in general and
administrative, which increased to $4,303,885 in 2007 from $2,821,726 in the comparable period in 2006. This general and administrative increase was due



primarily to increases in employee costs of approximately $1,200,000, of which approximately $1,620,000 (including $562,500 in cash compensation and
$1,057,372 in SFAS 123R expenses) was related to the Separation and Release Agreement with the Company’s former Chief Executive Officer, partially offset
by decreases in SFAS 123R expenses of approximately $130,000 and salaries and bonuses of approximately $330,000. General and administrative also
includes increases in legal expenses of approximately $230,000 and accounting expenses of approximately $50,000. Research and development decreased to
$6,317,641 in the first quarter of 2007 from $6,763,245 in the first quarter of 2006. This research and development decrease was due primarily to decreases in
employee costs of approximately $940,000, of which approximately $430,000 was related to the acceleration of the vesting of certain stock options in the first
quarter of 2006 and decreases in SFAS 123R expenses of approximately $140,000 and salaries and bonuses of approximately $360,000, partially offset by
increases in chemical and lab supply costs of approximately $390,000, government contract related equipment expenses of approximately $350,000, and
professional consultant costs of approximately $160,000. The remaining research and development decrease was due to net decreases in clinical trial related
expenses of approximately $500,000, partially offset by increases in leasehold and patent amortization expenses of approximately $50,000 and facility costs of
approximately $40,000. Net interest income decreased to $362,509 in the first quarter of 2007 from $457,859 in the first quarter of 2006 due to decreases in
average cash, cash equivalents and short-term securities, partially offset by increases in average interest rates of the Company’s interest earning investments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company does not expect any material revenues in 2007 or 2008 from its business activities other than from potential government grants and research
contracts. The Company expects that its cash requirements through 2007 will be satisfied by existing cash resources. To fund its operations beyond 2007, the
Company will need to secure additional funds. Such funds could come from technology license fees, government grants and research contracts, and accessing capital
markets.

In December 2006, the Company announced the execution of a two-year $28 million research contract with the Defense Threat Reduction Agency (DTRA), an
agency of the United States Department of Defense (DoD). The contract is directed toward funding the
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Company’s development of antisense therapeutics to treat the effects of Ebola, Marburg and Junin hemorrhagic viruses, which are seen as biological warfare
and bioterrorism agents. Funding under this contract is expected over two years, with approximately $18.0 million committed in the first year, and the
remainder anticipated in the second year. In the first quarter of 2007, the Company recognized $485,292 in research contract revenue from this contract.

In January 2006, the Company announced that the final version of the 2006 defense appropriations act had been approved, which included an allocation of $11.0
million to fund its ongoing defense-related programs. Net of government administrative costs, it is anticipated that the Company will receive up to $9.8 million
under this allocation. The Company’s NEUGENE  technology is expected to be used to continue developing therapeutic agents against Ebola, Marburg and
dengue viruses, as well as to continue developing countermeasures for anthrax exposure and antidotes for ricin toxin. The Company has received signed contracts
for three of the projects, with government expenditures of $7.1 million. The Company continues to work with the government to define the scope of work to be
performed on the fourth project, dengue viruses. The Company expects that funding under these contracts will be received over the next 12 months as it seeks
reimbursement for its research under the contracts, and such funding has not yet been received and is not reflected in the Company’s 2007 first quarter financial
statements .

The Company’s cash, cash equivalents and short-term securities were $27,046,111 at March 31, 2007, compared with $33,152,132 at December 31, 2006. The
decrease of $6,106,021 was due primarily to $5,494,018 used in operations and $609,962 used for purchases of property and equipment and patent related
costs.

The Company’s short-term securities include certificates of deposit, commercial paper and other highly liquid investments with original maturities in excess of 90
days at the time of purchase and less than one year from the balance sheet date. The Company classifies its investment securities as available-for-sale and,
accordingly, such investment securities are stated on the balance sheet at their fair market value with unrealized gains (losses) recorded as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company’s future expenditures and capital requirements depend on numerous factors, most of which are difficult to project beyond the short term,
including without limitation, the progress of its research and development programs, the progress of its pre-clinical and clinical trials, the time and costs
involved in obtaining regulatory approvals, the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights,
competing technological and market developments, its ability to establish collaborative arrangements and the terms of any such arrangements, and the costs
associated with commercialization of its products. The Company’s cash requirements are expected to continue to increase each year as the Company expands
its activities and operations. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will ever be able to generate product revenues or achieve or sustain
profitability.

In addition, the Company’s prospects for profitability and long term success may be adversely affected by the recent resignation of its Chief Executive Officer.
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to find and employ a permanent CEO that will be able to lead the Company successfully in the near
term. The failure to secure a permanent replacement may adversely affect the Company’s research and development efforts.

14

The Company expects to continue to incur losses as it expands its research and development activities and related regulatory work and increases its
collaborative efforts. For 2007, the Company expects expenditures for operations, including collaborative efforts and GMP facilities to be approximately $25
to $28 million. Expenditures for 2007 could increase if the Company undertakes additional collaborative efforts. If necessary, however, the Company’s
management has the ability to significantly curtail certain expenditures because a significant amount of the Company’s costs are variable.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations are based upon its financial statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to make

®



estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
The Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates are consistent with the disclosure in the Company’s Form 10-K.

Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
There has been no material change in the Company’s market risk exposure since the filing of our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of March 31, 2007, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including its Chief
Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule
13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on this review of its disclosure controls and procedures, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that its disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material information relating to the
Company that is required to be included in our periodic SEC filings.

Internal Controls and Procedures

There were no significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings.

 None

Item 1A.  Risk Factors.

In March 2007, the Company’s Chief Executive officer resigned and an interim CEO was appointed. The Company intends to commence a search for a
permanent replacement. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to find and employ a new permanent CEO that will be able to lead the
Company successfully in the near term. The failure to secure a permanent replacement may adversely affect the Company’s research and development efforts.

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None

Item 3  Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securities Holders.

None

Item 5.  Other Information.

None

Item 6.  Exhibits

   Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated

Exhibit No  Exhibit Description  Form  File No.  Exhibit  Filing Date  

Filed
Herewith

4.1
 

Third Restated Articles of Incorporation of
AntiVirals Inc.

 

SB-2
 

333-20513
 

3.1
 

5/29/97
 

 

4.2
 

First Amendment to Third Restated Articles of
Incorporation of AntiVirals Inc.

 

8-K
 

0-22613
 

3.3
 

9/30/98
  

4.3
 

Amendment to Article 2 of the Company’s Third
Restated Articles of Incorporation

 

DEF 14A
 

1-14895
 

N/A
 

4/11/02
  

4.4
 

Bylaws of AntiVirals Inc.
 

SB-2
 

333-20513
 

3.2
 

5/29/97
  

10.58+
 

Cross License Agreement dated January 8, 2007
by and between Eleos, Inc. and AVI BioPharma,
Inc.

         

X

10.59
 

Separation and Release Agreement dated March
27, 2007 by and between Denis R. Burger, Ph.D.
and AVI BioPharma, Inc.

         

X

31.1
 

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, K. Michael Forrest, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

         

X



31.2
 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer, Mark M.
Webber pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

         

X

32
 

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, K. Michael Forrest, and Chief Financial
Officer, Mark M. Webber, pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

         

X

 

Materials in the exhibit marked with a “+” have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

Date:May 10, 2007 AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.
   
 

By: /s/ K. MICHAEL FORREST
 

K. Michael Forrest
 

Chief Executive Officer
 

(Principal Executive Officer)
   
 

By: /s/ MARK M. WEBBER
 

Mark M. Webber
 

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Information Officer
 

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.58

CROSS LICENSE AGREEMENT

between

ELEOS, INC.

and

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

 

CROSS LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS CROSS LICENSE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and is effective as of the 8th day of January, 2007 (the “Effective Date”) by
and between AVI BioPharma, Inc., an Oregon corporation with its principal place of business at One SW Columbia, Suite 1105, Portland, Oregon 97258
(“AVI”), and Eleos, Inc., a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business at One Valmont Plaza; Suite 301, Omaha, Nebraska 68154 (“Eleos”) (with
each of AVI and Eleos referred to as a “Party” and jointly, the “Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the Parties owns, controls or otherwise has rights with regard to its respective Intellectual Property related to technologies and
products for regulation of p53 protein, with Eleos controlling intellectual property related to uses of antisense p53 sequences and specific antisense p53
sequences that have superior properties compared to other p53 target sequences, and with AVI owning intellectual property relating to phosphorodiamidate
morpholino oligomer (“PMO”) chemistry and its uses expected to lead to antisense drugs directed against p53 that have superior pharmaceutical properties for
some purposes compared with drugs based on other antisense chemistries, identified as AVI Intellectual Property on attached Exhibit A and Eleos Intellectual
Property on attached Exhibit B;

WHEREAS, Eleos and AVI wish to pursue their own development and joint development opportunities resulting from the combination of Eleos’ p53
technology and AVI’s PMO technology;

WHEREAS, Eleos’ main field of interest in p53-PMO technology is as a therapeutic target for the treatment of cancer, including protection of non-
malignant or normal cells and tissues from the effects of chemotherapy and radiation, AVI’s main field of interest in p53-PMO technology is as a potential
target for antiviral therapies, and the Parties wish to cooperate in the development and commercialization of therapies using p53-PMO technology in other
fields;

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to obtain from each other and make available to each other certain rights for the development and clinical and
commercial manufacture, use and sale of products using the AVI Intellectual Property and Eleos Intellectual Property on the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1.                                       Definitions

All definitions below or elsewhere in this Agreement apply to both their singular and plural forms, as the context may require.  “Herein,” “hereunder,”
and “hereof” and other similar expressions refer to this Agreement.  “Section” refers to sections in this Agreement.  “Including” means “including without
limitation.” “Days” means “calendar days,” unless otherwise stated.

1.1           “Affiliate” means any corporation or business entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with
Eleos or AVI to the extent of at least 50 percent of the outstanding stock or other voting rights entitled to elect directors.

1.2           “API” means the active pharmaceutical ingredient for a Licensed Product.

1.3           “AVI Confidential Information” is Confidential Information of AVI.

1.4           “AVI Field” means the treatment of all viral diseases except for those related to human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) infection.

1.5           “AVI Improvements” means any change, modification, enhancement or addition which is an improvement to or further development of the
AVI Intellectual Property, whether or not patentable or copyrightable and whether created by AVI or Eleos acting alone or by AVI and Eleos acting jointly.

1.6           “AVI Intellectual Property” means the intellectual property listed in Exhibit A and rights under any other Intellectual Property of AVI
developed or acquired by AVI subsequent to execution of this Agreement which, absent the license to Eleos hereunder, would be infringed by Eleos in the
development or commercialization of products in the Eleos Field.

1.7           “AVI Net Sales” means the total of the gross sales of Licensed Eleos IP Products sold or transferred by AVI and AVI’s Affiliates and
sublicensees, less the following actual and customary third-party wholesaler and or distributor deductions as applicable: reasonable and customary wholesaler
or distributor sales commissions (for clarity, commissions and other compensation paid to sales and marketing personnel of AVI or its marketing partner(s) are
not deductible); allowances or credits to purchasers for rejections, returns, withdrawals or recalls; cash, trade or quantity discounts; sales rebates or



chargebacks; third party distribution fees; sales, use, excise or other taxes imposed on sales; import and export duties; and shipping charges.  To the extent AVI
has deducted amounts as permitted by the preceding sentence and AVI later receives a refund against the amount deducted, the refunded amount shall be
included as part of AVI Net Sales.  Payments shall be made only upon sales or transfers between unrelated third parties and shall be based on arms-length
consideration.  In the event AVI or any of its Affiliates makes a transfer of a Licensed Eleos IP Product to a third party for other than monetary consideration or
for less than fair market value, such transfer shall be considered a sale hereunder to be calculated at a fair market value for accounting and royalty purposes.  A
Licensed Eleos IP Product shall be deemed sold or transferred at the time the entity making the transaction on which the royalty is based bills, invoices, ships,
or receives payment for such Licensed Eleos IP Product, whichever occurs first.  For sales of a Licensed Eleos IP Product which constitutes a Combination
Product, AVI Net Sales will be calculated based on a reasonable allocation between the Combination Product Components and the remainder of the Licensed
Eleos IP Product.

1.8           “Combination Product” means a combined product that contains or uses a Licensed Product and at least one other therapeutic product (a
“Combination Product Component”), where such Combination Product Component is not a Licensed Product; such Combination Product Component and such
Licensed Product are usually sold separately; and the market price of such combined product is higher than the market price for such Licensed Product (if sold
separately) as a result of such combined product containing or using such Combination Product Component.

1.9           “Confidential Information” means any commercially sensitive information of a Party in its broadest context, whether in writing (including
any computer files or records), oral form or available by observation, not generally known to the public, and includes all (i) matters of a technical nature such
as trade secret processes or devices, techniques, data, formulas, inventions (whether or not patentable), specifications and characteristics of products planned or
being developed, research subjects, methods and results, regulatory strategies, and patent prosecution documents with regard to a Party’s Intellectual Property;
(ii) matters of a business nature such as information about costs, margins, pricing policies, markets, sales, suppliers, customers, product plans, marketing plans
or strategies and any other financial information; and (iii) the specific terms of this Agreement and any Statement of Work.

1.10         “Effective Date” means the date first written above.
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1.11         “Eleos Confidential Information” is Confidential Information of Eleos.

1.12         “Eleos Field” means the treatment of cancer, including the protection of non-malignant or normal cells and tissues from the effects of
chemotherapy and radiation.

1.13         “Eleos Improvements” means any change, modification, enhancement or addition which is an improvement to or further development of the
Eleos Intellectual Property, whether or not patentable or copyrightable and whether created by AVI or Eleos acting alone or by AVI and Eleos acting jointly.

1.14         “Eleos Intellectual Property” means the Intellectual Property listed in Exhibit B, and rights under any other Intellectual Property of Eleos
developed or acquired by Eleos subsequent to execution of this Agreement which, absent the license to AVI hereunder, would be infringed by AVI in the
development or commercialization of products in the AVI Field.

1.15         “Eleos Net Sales” means the total of all sales of Licensed AVI IP Products sold or transferred by Eleos and Eleos’ Affiliates and
sublicensees, less the following actual and customary third-party wholesaler and distributor deductions as applicable: reasonable and customary wholesaler or
distributor sales commissions (for clarity, commissions and other compensation paid to sales and marketing personnel of Eleos or its marketing partner(s) are
not deductible); allowances or credits to purchasers for rejections, returns, withdrawals or recalls; cash, trade or quantity discounts; sales rebates or
chargebacks; third party distribution fees; sales, use, excise or other taxes imposed on sales; import and export duties; and shipping charges.  To the extent
Eleos has deducted amounts as permitted by the preceding sentence and Eleos later receives a refund against the amount deducted, the refunded amount shall
be included as part of Eleos Net Sales.  Payments shall be made only upon sales or transfers between unrelated third parties and shall be based on arms-length
consideration.  In the event Eleos or any of its Affiliates makes a transfer of a Licensed AVI IP Product to a third party for other than monetary consideration or
for less than fair market value, such transfer shall be considered a sale hereunder to be calculated at a fair market value for accounting and royalty purposes.  A
Licensed AVI IP Product shall be deemed sold or transferred at the time the entity making the transaction on which the royalty is based bills, invoices, ships, or
receives payment for such Licensed AVI IP Product, whichever occurs first.  For sales of a Licensed AVI IP Product which constitutes a Combination Product,
Eleos Net Sales will be calculated based on a reasonable allocation between the Combination Product Components and the remainder of the Licensed AVI IP
Product.

1.16         “FDA” means the United States Food and Drug Administration.

1.17         “Intellectual Property” means patents, patent applications, utility models, industrial designs, certificates of inventions, trademarks,
copyrights, trade secrets, know how, and any other Intellectual Property rights in any country of the world, including all related filings, substitutions,
extensions, reissues, renewals, continuations and continuations in part, all registrations and the like.

1.18         “Joint Development Proposal” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2.

1.19         “Joint Field” means the treatment of all diseases and conditions outside the AVI Field and the Eleos Field

1.20         “Jointly Owned Intellectual Property” means Newly Created Intellectual Property that is owned by both parties in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement.

1.21         “Joint p53-PMO Item” means any material, product, service, process, or procedure, which combines Eleos Intellectual Property related to
p53 and AVI Intellectual Property related to PMO,
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whether such Intellectual Property exists as of the Effective Date or is developed or acquired subsequent to execution of this Agreement, for treatment of
diseases with currently existing or novel morpholino compounds that target the p53 gene, or p53 RNA or intentionally target proteins encoded by the p53 gene
in order to achieve a therapeutic effect.

1.22         “Licensed AVI IP Method” means any process, method, or use that is covered by AVI Intellectual Property or the use or practice of which
would constitute, but for the license granted to Eleos pursuant to this Agreement, an infringement of the AVI Intellectual Property.

1.23         “Licensed AVI IP Product” means any material, product, service, process, or procedure that (i) is covered by AVI Intellectual Property or
whose discovery, development, registration, manufacture, use, or sale would constitute, but for the license granted to Eleos pursuant to this Agreement, an
infringement of any claim within the AVI Intellectual Property or (ii) is discovered, developed, made, sold, registered, or practiced using AVI Intellectual
Property or a Licensed AVI IP Method or (iii) is used to practice the Licensed AVI IP Method, in whole or in part.

1.24         “Licensed Eleos IP Method” means any process, method, or use that is covered by Eleos Intellectual Property or the use or practice of
which would constitute, but for the license granted to AVI pursuant to this Agreement, an infringement of the Eleos Intellectual Property.

1.25         “Licensed Eleos IP Product” means any material, product, service, process, or procedure that (i) is covered by Eleos Intellectual Property or
whose discovery, development, registration, manufacture, use, or sale would constitute, but for the license granted to AVI pursuant to this Agreement, an
infringement of any claim within the Eleos Intellectual Property or (ii) is discovered, developed, made, sold, registered, or practiced using Eleos Intellectual
Property or a Licensed Eleos IP Method or (iii) is used to practice the Licensed Eleos IP Method, in whole or in part.

1.26         “Licensed Product” means a Licensed AVI IP Product or Licensed Eleos IP Product, as applicable according to the context.

1.27         “Net Sales” means AVI Net Sales or Eleos Net Sales, as applicable according to the context.

1.28         “Newly Created Intellectual Property” means Intellectual Property created during the term of this Agreement by one or both of the Parties
hereto and in furtherance of performance under this Agreement.

1.29         “Statement of Work” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1.

1.30         “Sublicensing Income” means amounts received by a Party and its successors, assigns and Affiliates from unaffiliated third parties
attributable to a sublicense of rights licensed under this Agreement.

1.31         “Third Party Licensors” means *****, *****, *****, and any other unrelated third-party patent licensor to which Eleos or AVI pays patent
licensing fees or royalties to make, use or sell a Licensed Product.  “Unrelated third-party patent licensor” refers to entities having no relationship to Eleos or
AVI other than to claim patent royalties and expressly excludes developers, suppliers, contractors, employees and consultants engaged by Eleos or AVI.
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2.                                       License Grants.

2.1           By AVI to Eleos.

(a)           Exclusive.  Subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, AVI hereby grants to Eleos and its Affiliates, so long as they
remain Affiliates of Eleos, an exclusive, worldwide license, with the right to sublicense (subject to Section 3 below), to AVI Intellectual Property that
relates to a Joint p53-PMO Item, solely in the Eleos Field, to research, develop, make, have made, subject to the terms of Article 9, use, import, put
into use, modify, distribute, offer for sale, sell and have sold Licensed AVI IP Products and to practice Licensed AVI IP Methods during the term of
this Agreement.  As used in this Section 2.1, “exclusive” means that AVI may not grant to any third party a license of the AVI Intellectual Property, in
whole or in part, within the Eleos Field and may not itself practice the AVI Intellectual Property within the Eleos Field.

(b)           Semi-Exclusive.  Effective as of the effective date of any Statement(s) of Work executed by the Parties under which the Parties
agree to engage in joint development activities, and subject to the specific terms and conditions of such Statement(s) of Work, AVI shall grant to Eleos
and its Affiliates, so long as they remain Affiliates of Eleos, a semi-exclusive, worldwide license to AVI Intellectual Property that relates to a Joint
p53-PMO Item, solely in the Joint Field and within the context of such joint development activities with AVI, to research, develop, make, have made,
subject to the terms of Article 9, use, import, put into use, modify, distribute, offer for sale, sell and have sold Licensed AVI IP Products and to
practice Licensed AVI IP Methods during the term of this Agreement.  Nothing herein will limit the right of AVI or its Affiliates to practice any claim
encompassed within the foregoing within the Joint Field.

2.2           By Eleos to AVI.

(a)           Exclusive.  Subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, Eleos hereby grants to AVI and its Affiliates, so long as they
remain Affiliates of AVI, an exclusive, worldwide license (or sublicense as the case may be), with the right to sublicense (subject to Section 3 below),
to Eleos Intellectual Property that relates to a Joint p53-PMO Item, solely in the AVI Field, to research, develop, make, have made, use, import, put
into use, modify, distribute, offer for sale, sell and have sold Licensed Eleos IP Products and to practice Licensed Eleos IP Methods during the term of
this Agreement.  As used in this Section 2.2, “exclusive” means that Eleos may not grant to any third party a license of the Eleos Intellectual Property,
in whole or in part, within the AVI Field and may not itself practice the Eleos Intellectual Property within the AVI Field.

(b)           Semi-Exclusive.  Effective as of the effective date of any Statement(s) of Work executed by the Parties under which the Parties
agree to engage in joint development activities, and subject to the specific terms and conditions of such Statement(s) of Work, Eleos shall grant to AVI
and its Affiliates, so long as they remain Affiliates of AVI, a semi-exclusive, worldwide license to Eleos Intellectual Property that relates to a Joint
p53-PMO Item, solely in the Joint Field and within the context of such joint development activities with Eleos, to research, develop, make, have
made, use, import, put into use, modify, distribute, offer for sale, sell and have sold Licensed Eleos IP Products and to practice Licensed Eleos IP
Methods during the term of this Agreement.  Nothing herein will limit the right of Eleos or its Affiliates to practice any claim encompassed within the
foregoing within the Joint Field.
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2.3           Improvements.  Each Party will promptly advise the other of AVI Improvements or Eleos Improvements made by it and its Affiliates during
the term of this Agreement, to the extent lawfully able to be disclosed.  AVI Improvements will automatically be included within the definition of “AVI
Intellectual Property,” and Eleos Improvements will automatically be included within the definition of “Eleos Intellectual Property,” subject to the terms
contained herein.

2.4           c-myc Conflicts with AVI Intellectual Property.  If in the future a patent is granted to Eleos or an Affiliate of Eleos related to c-myc, the
claims of which would cause an AVI product actually or potentially to infringe such claims, Eleos will grant to AVI a non-exclusive license to such claims in
so far as they apply to the infringing or potentially infringing AVI product at nominal cost to AVI, e.g., $1.00 plus reimbursement of Eleos’ legal costs to
finalize the license agreement, and no other cost.  If in the future Eleos or an Affiliate of Eleos gains rights via a license agreement to patents related to c-myc,
the claims of which would cause an AVI product actually or potentially to infringe such claims, Eleos will grant to AVI a non-exclusive sublicense to such
claims in so far as they apply to the infringing or potentially infringing AVI product at nominal cost to AVI, e.g., $1.00 plus reimbursement of Eleos’ legal
costs to finalize the sublicense agreement, and no other cost.  If Eleos has a royalty obligation to such third party licensor for such c-myc patent claims, the
sublicense to AVI will include the same royalty obligation as a pass-through without any mark up.

3.                                       Sublicenses

3.1           Sublicenses Granted By Eleos.

(a)      AVI grants to Eleos the right to grant sublicenses to third parties under the licenses granted in Section 2.1, provided that (i) Eleos
has current exclusive rights to the AVI Intellectual Property that relates to a Joint p53-PMO Item in the relevant field under this Agreement at the
time it exercises a right of sublicense, (ii) Eleos obtains the written consent of AVI, and (iii) the sublicense results from a written agreement entered
into by Eleos and the sublicensee.  Within fourteen (14) days after execution of any sublicense agreement, Eleos shall provide AVI with a copy of
such agreement, and shall thereafter summarize and deliver all reports due to AVI relating to the sublicensees.  If Eleos is in material compliance
with its duties under this Agreement, AVI shall not contact any such sublicensee.

3.2           Sublicenses Granted By AVI.

(a)      Eleos grants to AVI the right to grant sublicenses to third parties under the licenses (or sublicenses as the case may be) granted in
Section 2.2, provided that (i) AVI has current exclusive rights to the Eleos Intellectual Property that relates to a Joint p53-PMO Item in the relevant
field under this Agreement at the time it exercises a right of sublicense, (ii) AVI obtains the written consent of Eleos, and (iii) the sublicense results
from a written agreement entered into by AVI and the sublicensee.  Within fourteen (14) days after execution of any sublicense agreement, AVI
shall provide Eleos with a copy of such agreement, and shall thereafter summarize and deliver all reports due to Eleos relating to the sublicensees. 
If AVI is in material compliance with its duties under this Agreement, Eleos shall not contact any such sublicensee.

4.                                       License Fees and Royalties.

4.1           Initial License Fee.  Within three (3) business days of the Effective Date, Eleos will pay AVI Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00)
according to wire transfer instructions provided by AVI.
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4.2           Eleos Milestone Payments.  Eleos shall make the following one-time payments to AVI upon achieving the milestones set forth below with
regard to a Licensed AVI IP Product:

Milestone    Payment Amount  

Enrollment of the first patient in the first human clinical study
 

$ *****
 

Enrollment of the first patient in a Phase III or pivotal study
 

$ *****
 

The first filing of a New Drug Application
 

$ *****
 

The first commencement of commercial sales after FDA approval of New Drug
Application

 

$ *****
 

The first time Eleos achieves $***** in cumulative Eleos Net Sales
 

$ *****
 

The first time Eleos achieves $***** in cumulative Eleos Net Sales
 

$ *****
  

                As a clarifying example with respect to Sections 4.2 and 4.4, if a Party achieves the first filing of a New Drug Application for more than one
Licensed Product, the ***** payment amount by that Party will only be payable the first time that that milestone is achieved and no payment will be due for
the subsequent times that that milestone is achieved.

Eleos shall pay all milestone payments hereunder within thirty (30) days following the date on which the milestone is achieved.

4.3           Earned Royalties - - Eleos.

(a)     Eleos will pay AVI earned royalties of *****% of Eleos Net Sales received with regard to Licensed AVI IP Products which are not
manufactured by AVI, less any royalty payments payable to Third Party Licensors, provided that in no instance shall the royalty payable under this
Section 4.3(a) to AVI after reduction for payments to the Third Party Licensors equal less than *****% of Eleos Net Sales.



(b)     Eleos will pay AVI earned royalties of *****% of Eleos Net Sales received with regard to Licensed AVI IP Products which are
manufactured by AVI, less any royalty payments payable to Third Party Licensors, provided that in no instance shall the royalty payable under this
Section 4.3(b) to AVI after reduction for payments to the Third Party Licensors equal less than *****% of Eleos Net Sales.

(c)     In the event that royalties cease to be payable to any Third Party Licensor, the royalties payable by Eleos to AVI under this Section
4.3 will be adjusted such that Eleos and AVI share equally in the financial benefit of the expiration or termination of the obligation to pay such
royalties to the Third Party Licensor.

4.4           AVI Milestone Payments.  AVI shall make the following one-time payments to Eleos upon achieving the milestones set forth below with
regard to a Licensed Eleos IP Product:
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Milestone    Payment Amount  

Enrollment of the first patient in the first human clinical study
 

$ *****
 

Enrollment of the first patient in a Phase III or pivotal study
 

$ *****
 

The first filing of a New Drug Application
 

$ *****
 

The first commencement of commercial sales after FDA approval of a New Drug
Application

 

$ *****
 

The first time AVI achieves $***** in cumulative AVI Net Sales
 

$ *****
 

The first time AVI achieves $***** in cumulative AVI Net Sales
 

$ *****
  

                AVI shall pay all milestone payments hereunder within thirty (30) days following the date on which the milestone is achieved.

4.5           Earned Royalties - - AVI.

(a)      AVI will pay Eleos earned royalties of *****% of AVI Net Sales, less any royalty payments payable to Third Party Licensors,
provided that in no instance shall the royalty payable under this Section 4.5(a) to Eleos after reduction for payments to Third Party Licensors equal
less than *****% of AVI Net Sales.

(b)      In the event that royalties cease to be payable to any Third Party Licensor, the royalties payable by AVI to AVI under this Section
4.5 will be adjusted such that AVI and AVI share equally in the financial benefit of the expiration or termination of the obligation to pay such
royalties to the Party Licensor.

4.6           Timing of Royalty Payments, Currency, Taxes and Fees.

(a)      Royalties payable to AVI or Eleos shall be paid quarterly on or before sixty (60) days following the end of each calendar quarter:
March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31.  Each such payment will be for unpaid royalties that accrued within or prior to the most
recently completed calendar quarter.  For example, within 60 days after March 31, each Party shall pay royalties for the calendar quarter ending
March 31 and any unpaid royalties accrued prior to such calendar quarter.

(b)      All amounts due under this Agreement shall be payable in United States dollars.  When Licensed Eleos IP Products or Licensed
AVI IP Products are sold for currency other than United States dollars, the earned royalties will first be determined in the foreign currency of the
country in which such products were sold and then converted into equivalent United States dollars.  The exchange rate will be the United States
dollar buying rate quoted in the Wall Street Journal on the last day of the reporting period.

(c)      The Party paying royalties hereunder shall be responsible for all taxes, fees or other charges imposed by the government of any
country outside the United States on
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the remittance of royalty income for sales occurring in any such country and for all bank transfer charges on such payments.

(d)      If at any time legal restrictions prevent the acquisition or prompt remittance of United States dollars by a Party owing royalties
hereunder with respect to any country where a Licensed Eleos IP Product or Licensed AVI IP Product is sold, the Party owing such royalties shall
make payment from its other sources of United States dollars.

4.7           Expiration or Invalidity of Patent.  In the event that (i) any patent or any claim thereof included within the AVI Intellectual Property or
Eleos Intellectual Property shall be held invalid in a final decision by a court of competent jurisdiction and last resort in any country from which no appeal has
or can be taken or (ii) if the local patent authority within such country determines that no patent may issue in a final decision from which no appeal has or can
be taken, and hence there is no valid patent claim within the relevant Intellectual Property in such country, all obligation to pay royalties based on such patent
or claim shall cease as of the date of such final decision with respect to such country.  The Party liable for royalties in such a case shall not, however, be
relieved from paying any royalties that accrued before such decision or that are based on another patent or claim not involved in such decision, or that are
based on non-patent Intellectual Property of the other Party.

5.                                       Diligence.



5.1           By Eleos.

(a)      Eleos, commencing upon the Effective Date, shall use commercially reasonable efforts to develop, test, obtain any required
governmental approvals, manufacture, market and sell Licensed AVI IP Products.

(b)      Within one year after the Effective Date, Eleos shall prepare and provide to AVI a formal commercially reasonable market analysis
and development plan (hereinafter the “Eleos Plan”).  Eleos shall follow the timelines set forth in the Eleos Plan in terms of products to be
commercialized within the timelines outlined in the Eleos Plan.  Recognizing the uncertainties that will be inherent in the Eleos Plan, Eleos shall
have the right to amend the Eleos Plan with the consent with AVI, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.

(c)      Within three months of receiving all required government approvals necessary for marketing a Licensed AVI IP Product in any
country, such as marketing authorization and government pricing and reimbursement approvals, Eleos shall commence commercial marketing of
such product in such country; and shall thereafter use commercially reasonable efforts to meet the market demand for such products in such
country at all times during the exclusive period of this Agreement.

(d)      If Eleos materially fails to perform any of its obligations under this Section 5 in a timely manner, except by reason of force
majeure, then AVI shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 13.

5.2           By AVI.

(a)     AVI, commencing upon the Effective Date, shall use commercially reasonable efforts to develop, test, obtain any required
governmental approvals, manufacture, market and sell Licensed Eleos IP Products.
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(b)     Within one year after the Effective Date, AVI shall prepare and provide to Eleos a formal commercially reasonable market analysis
and development plan (hereinafter the “AVI Plan”).  AVI shall follow the timelines set forth in the AVI Plan in terms of products to be
commercialized within the timelines outlined in the AVI Plan.  Recognizing the uncertainties that will be inherent in the AVI Plan, AVI shall have
the right to amend the AVI Plan with the consent of Eleos, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.

(c)     Within three months of receiving all required government approvals necessary for marketing a Licensed Eleos IP Product in any
country, such as marketing authorization and government pricing and reimbursement approvals, AVI shall commence commercial marketing of
such product in such country; and shall thereafter use commercially reasonable efforts to meet the market demand for such products in such
country at all times during the exclusive period of this Agreement.

(d)     If AVI materially fails to perform any of its obligations under this Section 5 in a timely manner, except by reason of force majeure,
then Eleos shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 13.

6.                                       Progress and Royalty Reports.

6.1           Progress Reports.  At the end of the first full calendar half-year after the Effective Date, and semi-annually thereafter, each Party shall
submit to the other Party a progress report covering its activities related to the development and testing of Licensed AVI IP Products or Licensed Eleos IP
Products, as the case may be, and the obtaining of the U.S. and foreign governmental approvals necessary for their marketing.  These progress reports shall be
made for each such product in development.

6.2           Contents.  The progress reports submitted under Section 6.1 shall include sufficient information to enable the other Party to determine the
submitting Party’s progress in fulfilling its obligations under Section 5, including, but not limited to, the following topics:

(a)     summary of work completed;

(b)     summary of work in progress, including product development and testing and progress in obtaining government approvals;

(c)     schedule of anticipated events or milestones;

(d)     market plans for introduction of Licensed Products in each region (U.S., EU, Japan) where such products have not been introduced;
and

(e)     activities in obtaining sublicensees and activities of sublicensees.

6.3           Meetings.  On or about each anniversary of the Effective Date, each Party shall have the right to call for a half-day, detailed review meeting
during which the Parties and representatives of their sublicensees, to the extent required under the Parties’ sublicense agreements, shall discuss the progress
reports submitted under Section 6.1.  These meetings shall be held under appropriate conditions of confidentiality, and each Party will cause its scientists and
other staff to provide full and detailed information to enable the other Party to evaluate the progress reports submitted under this Section 6 and to evaluate
proposed amendments to the Eleos Plan and AVI Plan as described in Section 5.
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6.4           Report of First Sales.  Each Party shall report to the other Party in its immediately subsequent progress and royalty report the date of first
commercial sales of each Licensed Product in each country.



6.5           Royalty Reports.  After the first sale of each Licensed Product anywhere in the world, the selling Party will make quarterly royalty reports
to the other Party on or before sixty (60) days after March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year.  Each such royalty report will cover the
reporting Party’s most recently completed calendar quarter and will show (a) the units sold, gross sales, deductions listed by type and Net Sales of each type of
Licensed Product sold by the reporting Party and its Affiliates on which royalties have not been paid, country by country; (b) the amount of royalties and fees
and other consideration, in U.S. dollars, payable hereunder; (c) any other factor used to calculate the royalty or any amount due hereunder; (d) the currency
exchange rates used, if any; and (e) any other information relating to the foregoing reasonably requested by the Party receiving the report.

6.6           Disclosure of Improvements.  If and to the extent that a Party makes any AVI Improvements or Eleos Improvements or becomes aware of
technical developments that would be relevant to the other Party during the term of this Agreement, it shall promptly disclose and report the same to the other
Party, as provided in Section 2.3 above, so that the Licensed Products may be designed, manufactured and sold with the latest and most effective technology
available.

7.                                       Product Development.

7.1           In the Eleos Field.  AVI, from time to time during the term of this Agreement as requested by Eleos, agrees to use its commercially
reasonable efforts to provide development services to Eleos in the Eleos Field.  Examples of such services may include manufacturing p53-targeted PMOs for
preclinical and clinical evaluation and conducting pilot toxicology and pharmacokinetic studies.  All such development activities under this Section 7.1 shall be
in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in statements of work (a “Statement of Work”) executed by the Parties in accordance with Section 7.3. 
The Parties expect that Eleos will compensate AVI for its services under this Section 7.1 on a monthly basis in amounts equal to AVI’s fully-burdened costs in
providing such services, as further provided in the applicable Statements of Work.  AVI will define “fully-burdened costs” and provide full detail of this cost
structure in the Statement of Work.

7.2           In the Joint Field.

(a)      If a Party (the “Proposing Party”) wishes to pursue an opportunity to develop and commercialize AVI Intellectual Property, Eleos
Intellectual Property and/or products embodying such Intellectual Property in the Joint Field, it shall prepare and submit to the other Party (the
“Receiving Party”) a preliminary proposal describing the opportunity with supporting rationale for the Steering Committee.  The Steering
Committee will review the preliminary proposal and, if it finds that the preliminary proposal merits attention, it shall require the Parties to develop
a joint Statement of Work in accordance with Section 7.3 describing in detail how they shall jointly pursue the opportunity (the “Joint
Development Proposal”), focusing on a specific and narrowly defined subset of the Joint Field (e.g., stroke, alopecia or AIDS).  The Parties will
share costs on a 50%/50% basis in preparing and executing the Joint Development Proposal.  If the Steering Committee rejects the preliminary
proposal, either Party may then submit a new preliminary proposal for that subject matter under this Section 7.2(a).

(b)      The terms and conditions on which the Parties will pursue Joint Development Proposals will be provided in the definitive
documents which they negotiate for this purpose. 
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The Parties expect that such definitive documents will provide that their respective share in milestone and royalty payments from sublicensees will
generally be divided equally after deduction of payments required to be made to Third Party Licensors, but will initially be proportionate to the
Parties’ respective financial investments in the relevant product development activities, until any disproportionate investment is recouped and an
additional premium is paid to the Party that made the greater investment to reflect the associated risk of such activities.  For example, if Eleos
expends 60% of the development costs up to the point of entering into a sublicensing agreement, and AVI expends 40% of such costs, then
(i) Eleos and AVI would share milestone and royalty revenue from the sublicensee 60%/40% after required Third Party Licensor payments are
made until Eleos recovers an additional annually compounded 25% cost of capital premium over its incrementally greater share invested, and
(ii) after such recovery the Parties would share sublicense proceeds on a 50%/50% basis.

7.3           Statements of Work.  Statements of Work shall be in writing and shall include, among other things, the detailed research and development
plans, timelines, budgets, payment terms, nature of deliverables, project coordination and other terms for the Development Services.  No Statement of Work
will become effective unless executed by an authorized representative of each of the Parties.  In the event of a direct conflict between a Statement of Work and
a particular term or condition contained in this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary above, if a Party performs
any services for the other Party under this Section 7 without first entering into an applicable Statement of Work, the terms and conditions of this Agreement
shall still govern such services.

8.                                       Steering Committee.

8.1           Steering Committee.  The Parties shall establish a steering committee consisting of two members appointed by AVI and two members
appointed by Eleos (the “Steering Committee”).  The Steering Committee shall direct, review and discuss the progress of the Parties’ efforts with respect to
joint development activities and such other matters arising under this Agreement as the Parties consider appropriate.  The Steering Committee shall meet at
regular meetings to be held approximately every three months.  The Steering Committee shall be responsible for coordinating the creation of Statements of
Work and the qualification of the Second Supply Source and other third-party contract manufacturers of API.

8.2           Governance of Steering Committee.  Eleos shall designate a member of the Steering Committee to serve as the chair of the Steering
Committee for the calendar year 2007.  Thereafter, a member of the Steering Committee shall be designated by AVI to serve as chair in even-numbered years,
and a member designated by Eleos shall serve as chair in odd-numbered years.  The chair shall be responsible for the administration of the Steering
Committee, including, without limitation, the scheduling of meetings and the preparation of meeting agendas.  Meetings shall be held at or near the Parties’
locations on an alternating basis or by telephone conference, at the discretion of the Steering Committee chair.  Each Party shall bear its own costs and
expenses in connection with all Steering Committee activities.  The actions and decisions of the Steering Committee shall not be binding upon the Parties
except as the Parties shall otherwise agree in writing.

8.3           Project Managers.  The Parties shall each appoint a project manager to assume overall responsibility for their respective roles and
obligations under this Agreement.  The Parties’ respective project managers will be responsible for coordinating the Parties’ respective joint development



activities, including overseeing the performance and quality thereof, participating in (personally or by representative) meetings of the Steering Committee,
acting as day-to-day liaisons between the Parties and coordination of the plans called for by Section 5 above.
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9.                                       Manufacturing.

9.1           Clinical Manufacturing.  AVI will be the preferred supplier to Eleos of cGMP clinical supplies of API, on the terms and conditions provided
in a separate Clinical Supply Agreement.

9.2           Second Supply.  Eleos and AVI will qualify a second manufacturing source agreed to by the Parties (the “Second Supply Source”) to
manufacture API for Licensed AVI IP Products for clinical and commercial purposes.  Eleos will develop qualification criteria and procedures in consultation
with AVI, and the Parties will cooperate to implement those criteria and procedures.  As part of qualification, the Second Supply Source will produce at least
one batch of cGMP API for manufacturing comparability testing and clinical use.  Eleos will be responsible for conducting the comparability testing and will
require API batch production records for all API batches in order to submit CMC filings to the FDA for its INDs and other equivalent regulatory filings in
foreign countries.  AVI will provide the Second Supply Source with such materials and information as are necessary to enable the Second Supply Source to
manufacture API as required by Eleos, including training conducted in AVI facilities and written materials provided in full within one-hundred twenty (120)
days of reasonable requests for information by Eleos or the Second Supply Source.  The Second Supply Source will be required to sign a suitable Non-
Disclosure Agreement acceptable to the Parties that provides for the maintenance of confidentiality of AVI Intellectual Property and appropriate restrictions on
its use.

9.3           AVI Option for Commercial Manufacturing.

(a)      To commence commercial manufacturing of API for Licensed AVI IP Products, Eleos shall request AVI to provide a quotation for
the manufacture of three batches of the API subject to specifications provided by Eleos.  AVI shall have a 30-day period to review the request and
provide a quotation.  If the AVI quotation is acceptable to Eleos and AVI demonstrates to Eleos’ reasonable satisfaction that AVI has the capability
to manufacture to Eleos’ requirements, including quality, quantity, cost, purchase price and delivery, and to meet all applicable regulatory
requirements including passing FDA inspection demonstrating AVI’s capability to manufacture commercial API under cGMP as a licensed
pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, then the Parties will use their best efforts to negotiate and execute a separate Commercial Supply
Agreement on commercially reasonable terms under which Eleos will purchase up to one kilogram per year of commercial API from AVI.  The
Parties agree that the purchase price payable by Eleos for API will be *****% of AVI’s fully-burdened manufacturing cost, reflecting an
appropriate allocation of indirect costs.  The Commercial Supply Agreement would provide that if AVI is willing and capable of supplying
commercial quantities of API in excess of one kilogram per year to Eleos, Eleos would have the right to purchase up to *****% of its commercial
needs above one kilogram/year from the Second Supply Source.  Earned royalties payable on Net Sales of commercial API manufactured by the
Second Supply Source or other contract manufacturer under these circumstances will be calculated at the *****% rate of Section 4.3(a).  If AVI
thereafter fails to meet its obligations to Eleos under the Commercial Supply Agreement, earned royalties payable on Net Sales of commercial API
manufactured by the Second Supply Source or other contract manufacturer will be calculated at the *****% rate of Section 4.3(b).

(b)      If AVI does not provide a quotation within the 30-day period or is unwilling or unable to manufacture API for any Licensed AVI IP
Product as required by Eleos, Eleos will be free to obtain API from the Second Supply Source or any other mutually-acceptable contract
manufacturer, with AVI’s consent not to be unreasonably withheld, and AVI will provide the contract manufacturer with materials, information and
training as provided for the Second Supply Source in Section 9.2.  Any such contract manufacturer will be required to sign
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a suitable Non-Disclosure Agreement acceptable to the Parties that provides for the maintenance of confidentiality of AVI Intellectual Property and
appropriate restrictions on its use.  If the contract manufacturer is one to which AVI has not previously conveyed its manufacturing processes for
the API, Eleos will reimburse AVI *****% of AVI’s fully-burdened cost of transferring the manufacturing process to the contract manufacturer.  In
this case earned royalties payable on Net Sales of commercial API manufactured by the Second Supply Source or other contract manufacturer will
be calculated at the *****% rate of Section 4.3(b).

10.                                 Intellectual Property.

10.1         Existing Intellectual Property.  This Agreement gives AVI no ownership rights in the Eleos Intellectual Property in existence as of the
Effective Date and gives Eleos no ownership rights in the AVI Intellectual Property in existence as of the Effective Date.

10.2         Newly Created Intellectual Property.  During the term of this Agreement, the Parties anticipate that Intellectual Property may be created by
one or both of the Parties hereto and in furtherance of performance under this Agreement (“Newly Created Intellectual Property”).  Ownership and use rights
for Newly Created Intellectual Property will be as follows:

(a)      Inventorship.  Inventorship of Newly Created Intellectual Property shall be determined in accordance with the patent laws of the
United States.

(b)      Ownership.  Newly Created Intellectual Property relating solely to AVI Intellectual Property shall constitute AVI Intellectual
Property and shall be owned by AVI.  Newly Created Intellectual Property relating solely to Eleos Intellectual Property shall constitute Eleos
Intellectual Property and shall be owned by Eleos.  Newly Created Intellectual Property that relates to both AVI Intellectual Property and Eleos
Intellectual Property shall be owned by the Party within whose Field the subject matter of the Newly Created Intellectual Property falls.  Newly
Created Intellectual Property that relates to both AVI Intellectual Property and Eleos Intellectual Property and the subject matter of which falls into
both the AVI Field and the Eleos Field shall be deemed to be jointly owned (“Jointly Owned Intellectual Property”).  AVI and Eleos agree to
execute the necessary documents (e.g., assignments) to convey ownership rights in the Newly Created Intellectual Property from one Party to the



other in keeping with the parameters set forth above.  Newly Created Intellectual Property which, under the terms of this Section 10.2(b) is deemed
to be AVI Intellectual Property, Eleos Intellectual Property or Jointly Owned Intellectual Property will automatically be included in the subject
matter of the license grants of Section 2.

11.                                 Books and Records.

11.1         Each Party (the “Reporting Party”) shall keep, and shall cause its Affiliates and sublicensees to keep, books and records in accordance with
generally acceptable accounting principles accurately showing all transactions and information relating to transactions under this Agreement.  Such books and
records shall be preserved for at least five (5) years from the date of the entry to which they pertain and shall be open at reasonable times upon reasonable
notice no more than once per calendar year for inspection by an independent certified public accountant of national standing satisfactory to the non-Reporting
Party.  Such accountant shall have reasonable access to the Reporting Party’s offices and the relevant records, files and books of account, and shall have the
right to examine any other records reasonably necessary to determine the accuracy of the calculations provided by the Reporting Party under this Agreement.
The accountant shall be required to sign a suitable confidentiality agreement reasonably
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acceptable to the Parties prior to conducting such audit, and the only Confidential Information of the Reporting Party (and its Affiliates) that the accountant
shall be authorized to disclose to the non-Reporting Party will be the results of the accountant’s calculation of royalties payable hereunder and royalties paid
hereunder.

11.2         The fees and expenses of the certified public accountant performing such an examination shall be borne by the non-Reporting Party. 
However, if an error in payable royalties of more than five percent (5%) of the total royalties due for any year is discovered, or if as a result of the examination
it is determined that the Reporting Party is in material breach of its other obligations under this Agreement, then such fees and expenses shall be borne by the
Reporting Party, and the Reporting Party shall promptly reimburse the non-Reporting Party for reasonably documented audit expenses as well as all overdue
royalty and late interest payments.

12.                                 Term.

12.1         Unless otherwise terminated by operation of law or by one or both of the Parties in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, this
Agreement shall be in force from the Effective Date and shall remain in effect in each country until the expiration of the last-to-expire patent of the Eleos
Intellectual Property or the AVI Intellectual Property licensed hereunder having claims covering a Licensed Product sold in such country, or ten (10) years
from the date of first commercial sale of a Licensed Product in such country, whichever is later.  After such date of expiration, the license hereunder shall be
considered fully paid up and the only obligations shall be as set forth in Section 12.2.

12.2         Any expiration or termination of this Agreement shall not affect the rights and obligations set forth in Sections 11 (Books and Records), 14
(Disposition of Licensed Products), 15 (Use of Names), 18 (Patent Marking), 20 (Indemnification), 27 (Confidentiality) and 28 (Dispute Resolution).

13.                                 Termination.

13.1         Notice of Breach.  If a Party breaches or fails to perform any material provision of this Agreement, the other Party may give written notice
of such default, specifying the breach and each country in which the breach is allegedly occurring or whether the breach relates to the entire Agreement (a
“Notice of Breach”) to the breaching Party.

13.2         Notice of Termination.  If the breaching Party fails to cure such default within sixty (60) days of the Notice of Breach, the non-breaching
Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the licenses herein (i) as to the country/ies where the breach remains uncured (if the breach relates
only to certain countries) or (ii) if the breach represents a material portion of the breaching Party’s obligations under this Agreement, then at the non-Breaching
Party’s option, as to the breaching Party’s license rights under the entire Agreement.  In order to so terminate, the non-breaching Party shall deliver a second
written notice (a “Notice of Termination”) to the breaching Party, if applicable specifying the countries where rights hereunder are being terminated.  If a
Notice of Termination is sent to a breaching Party, this Agreement shall automatically terminate on the effective date of such Notice of Termination to the
extent of the termination provided for therein.  Termination by a non-breaching Party shall not terminate the license rights and other benefits received by the
non-breaching Party under this Agreement, and the obligations of the non-breaching Party that correspond thereto (e.g., to make payments under Section 4,
engage in diligence under Section 5, and, in the event Eleos is the non-breaching party, to purchase manufactured API in accordance with Section 9), but shall
terminate the non-breaching Party’s obligations regarding product development under Sections 7 and 8.

13.3         Obligation for Amounts Owed.  Termination shall not relieve the breaching Party of its obligation to pay all amounts due to the non-
breaching Party as of the effective date of termination and
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shall not impair any accrued rights of the non-breaching Party.  During the 60-day cure period provided by the foregoing, the Parties shall negotiate in good
faith to resolve any dispute relating to any alleged breach of this Agreement.

14.                                 Disposition of Licensed Products and Information on Termination.

14.1         Upon termination of this Agreement by a Party:

(a)     the other Party may complete all partially made Licensed Products and dispose of all previously made Licensed Products, but no
more, within a period of one hundred and eighty (180) days after the Notice of Termination; provided, however, that the disposition of such
Licensed Products shall be subject to the terms of this Agreement including, but not limited to, the payment of royalties at the rate and at the time
provided herein and the delivery of reports thereon; and



(b)     the breaching Party shall promptly return, and shall cause its Affiliates and sublicensees to return, to the other Party all property
belonging to the other Party including materials containing Confidential Information of the other Party (except for one copy of such materials
which may be retained for record purposes only and which may not be disclosed).

15.                                 Use of Names and Trademarks.

15.1         Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as granting any right to a Party, its Affiliates or sublicensees to use in advertising,
publicity or other promotional activities or otherwise any name, trade name, trademark, or other designation of the other Party.

15.2         Subject to Section 15.1 above, a Party may use any name, trade name, trademark, logo or other designation (“Marks”) that it desires with
respect to the design, development, manufacture or sale of Licensed Products anywhere in the world.  Each Party shall own all right, title and interest in and to
its own Marks, both during and after termination of this Agreement.  No Party shall use, register or attempt to register any Mark that would be confusingly
similar to any Mark of the other Party.

16.                                 Representations and Warranties.

16.1         By AVI.  AVI represents and warrants to Eleos, as of the date of this Agreement, that:

(a)     it is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Oregon;

(b)     it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder, and this Agreement
constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of AVI, enforceable in accordance with its terms and conditions;

(c)     neither the entering into of this Agreement nor the performance of any of its obligations hereunder will conflict with or constitute a
breach under any obligation of AVI or any of its Affiliates or under any agreement, contract or instrument to which AVI or any of its Affiliates is a
party or any other obligation, law or regulation by which AVI or any of its Affiliates is bound;
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(d)     it has the sole and lawful right to grant the licenses, or sublicenses as the case may be to the AVI Intellectual Property contained in
this Agreement, free and clear of any encumbrances except as described in this Agreement;

(e)     the AVI Intellectual Property includes all Intellectual Property (including all patent rights issued or in the form of applications filed)
currently owned, licensable, sublicensable or controlled by AVI that would be infringed by practice of AVI Intellectual Property in the Eleos Field;

(f)      AVI has not previously assigned, licensed, sold or otherwise transferred any rights in and to the AVI Intellectual Property in the
Eleos Field or the Joint Field to any other person on or before the Effective Date;

(g)     no claim is pending or, to the best of AVI’s knowledge, threatened to the effect that any of the AVI Intellectual Property infringes
upon or conflicts with the valid rights of any other person under any intellectual property, and, to the best of AVI’s knowledge, there is no basis for
any such claim (whether or not pending or threatened);

(h)     no claim is pending or, to the best of AVI’s knowledge, threatened to the effect that any of the AVI Intellectual Property is invalid or
unenforceable by AVI, and, to the best of AVI’s knowledge, there is no basis for any such claim (whether or not pending or threatened);

(i)      to the best of AVI’s knowledge, all AVI Intellectual Property developed by and belonging to AVI or its Affiliates which has not
been patented has been kept confidential, and all employees, consultants and founders of AVI and its Affiliates have executed, and are subject to,
confidential and proprietary information agreements, which contain provisions regarding the assignment of all intellectual property rights to AVI.

(j)      EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 16.1, THE LICENSE BY AVI SET FORTH HEREIN AND THE AVI
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARE PROVIDED WITHOUT WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND AVI MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY THAT
THE AVI INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY WILL NOT INFRINGE ANY PATENT OR OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHT.

16.2         By Eleos.  Eleos represents and warrants to AVI, as of the date of this Agreement, that:

(a)     it is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware;

(b)     it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder, and this Agreement
constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Eleos, enforceable in accordance with its terms and conditions;

(c)     neither the entering into of this Agreement nor the performance of any of its obligations hereunder will conflict with or constitute a
breach under any obligation of Eleos or any of its Affiliates or under any agreement, contract or instrument to which Eleos or any of its Affiliates
is a party or any other obligation, law or regulation by which Eleos or any of its Affiliates is bound;
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(d)     it has the sole and lawful right to grant the licenses, or sublicenses as the case may be to the Eleos Intellectual Property contained in
this Agreement, free and clear of any encumbrances except as described in this Agreement;



(e)     the Eleos Intellectual Property includes all Intellectual Property (including all patent rights issued or in the form of applications
filed) currently owned, licensable, sublicensable or controlled by Eleos that would be infringed by practice of Eleos Intellectual Property in the
Eleos Field;

(f)      Eleos has not previously assigned, licensed, sold or otherwise transferred any rights in and to the Eleos Intellectual Property in the
AVI Field or the Joint Field to any other person on or before the Effective Date;

(g)     no claim is pending or, to the best of Eleos’ knowledge, threatened to the effect that any of the Eleos Intellectual Property infringes
upon or conflicts with the valid rights of any other person under any intellectual property, and, to the best of Eleos’ knowledge, there is no basis
for any such claim (whether or not pending or threatened);

(h)     no claim is pending or, to the best of Eleos’ knowledge, threatened to the effect that any of the Eleos Intellectual Property is invalid
or unenforceable by Eleos, and, to the best of Eleos’ knowledge, there is no basis for any such claim (whether or not pending or threatened);

(i)      to the best of Eleos’ knowledge, all Eleos Intellectual Property developed by and belonging to Eleos or its Affiliates which has not
been patented has been kept confidential, and all employees, consultants and founders of Eleos and its Affiliates have executed, and are subject to,
confidential and proprietary information agreements, which contain provisions regarding the assignment of all intellectual property rights to Eleos.

(j)      EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 16.2, THE LICENSE BY ELEOS SET FORTH HEREIN AND THE ELEOS
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARE PROVIDED WITHOUT WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND ELEOS MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY
THAT THE ELEOS INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY WILL NOT INFRINGE ANY PATENT OR OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHT.

17.                                 Patent Prosecution and Maintenance.

17.1         Prosecution.  Eleos shall diligently prosecute and maintain the United States and international patent applications and patents included in
the Eleos Intellectual Property using counsel of its choice.  AVI shall diligently prosecute and maintain the United States and international patent applications
and patents included in the AVI Intellectual Property using counsel of its choice.  Each Party’s counsel shall consult in good faith with patent counsel for the
other Party prior to any material filings or other actions before or communications with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and shall promptly provide the
other Party with copies of all relevant documentation so that it may be informed of the continuing prosecution.  The receiving Party agrees to keep this
documentation confidential.  Each Party’s counsel shall take instructions only from that Party.

17.2         Drafting Consideration.  Eleos shall give due consideration to drafting or amending any patent application included in the Eleos Intellectual
Property to include claims reasonably requested by
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AVI to protect the Licensed Eleos IP Products contemplated to be sold under this Agreement.  AVI shall give due consideration to drafting or amending any
patent application included in the AVI Intellectual Property to include claims reasonably requested by Eleos to protect the Licensed AVI IP Products
contemplated to be sold under this Agreement.

17.3         Costs.  Eleos shall be responsible for paying all past and future costs, of preparing, filing, prosecuting, defending, and maintaining all
United States patent applications and/or patents, including interferences and oppositions, and all corresponding foreign patent applications and patents covered
by Eleos Intellectual Property.  AVI shall be responsible for paying all past and future costs, of preparing, filing, prosecuting, defending, and maintaining all
United States patent applications and/or patents, including interferences and oppositions, and all corresponding foreign patent applications and patents covered
by AVI Intellectual Property.  In addition, for Jointly Owned Intellectual Property Eleos will be responsible for paying for all future costs for inventions as they
apply to new p53-PMO compositions of matter and uses thereof with respect to p53 regulation including but not limited to oligonucleotide sequences, and AVI
will be responsible for paying for all future costs for other inventions such as drug delivery methods or new compositions of matter not targeting p53 and uses
thereof as it applies to PMO technology.  With respect to Jointly Owned Intellectual Property the responsible Party will provide the other Party with all
correspondence with patent offices in a timely fashion.  Should the responsible Party elect to forgo any or all available patent rights with respect to a Jointly
Owned Invention the other Party shall have the right to take over the prosecution of those rights and pay for all such activity.  The Parties shall mutually share
the prosecution strategy and negotiate on a case-by-case basis when necessary the allocation of costs associated with prosecution of Jointly Owned Intellectual
Property or Newly Created Intellectual Property described under Section 10.2(b) that falls outside the foregoing.

17.4         Newly Created Intellectual Property.  As relates to Newly Created Intellectual Property: Eleos shall have the right to file patent applications
at its own expense in any country or countries in which AVI has not elected to secure patent rights or in which AVI’s patent rights hereunder have terminated,
and such applications and resultant patents shall not be subject to this Agreement and may be freely licensed by Eleos to third parties; and,  AVI shall have the
right to file patent applications at its own expense in any country or countries in which Eleos has not elected to secure patent rights or in which Eleos’ patent
rights hereunder have terminated, and such applications and resultant patents shall not be subject to this Agreement and may be freely licensed by AVI to third
parties.

18.                                 Patent Marking.

Each Party shall mark all Licensed Products made, used, sold or otherwise disposed of under the terms of this Agreement, and their containers, in
accordance with 35 U.S.C. § 287(a) or any other successor statute in the United States and the applicable patent marking laws of any other country in which
Licensed Products are sold.  Each Party shall ensure that any sublicensee authorized by it under this Agreement shall also mark all Licensed Products
accordingly.  In light of the biological applications of the Licensed Products and the need to ensure their sterility and biocompatability, each Party may use any
marking technique or procedure which it determines in its reasonable professional judgment to be suitable to comply with the foregoing requirement.

19.                                 Infringement.

19.1         In the event that a Party learns of the substantial infringement in the AVI Field, Eleos Field or Joint Field of any patent included in the other
Party’s Intellectual Property licensed under this Agreement, the Party with such information shall notify the other Party in writing and shall provide the other



Party with evidence of such infringement.  Both Parties agree that during the period and in a jurisdiction where a Party has exclusive rights under this
Agreement under the other Party’s Intellectual
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Property, neither will notify a third party of the infringement of any of such other Party’s Intellectual Property without first obtaining consent of the other Party,
which consent shall not be unreasonably denied.  Both Parties shall use their best efforts to cooperate with each other to terminate such infringement without
litigation.

19.2         A Party may request that the other Party take legal action against the infringement of the other Party’s Intellectual Property.  Such request
shall be made in writing and shall include reasonable evidence of such infringement.  If the infringing activity has not been abated within ninety (90) days
following the effective date of such request, the first Party shall have the right to commence suit on its own account or to refuse to commence such suit.

19.3         Each Party agrees to cooperate with the other in litigation proceedings instituted hereunder but at the expense of the Party on account of
whom suit is brought for out-of-pocket expenses.  Such litigation shall be controlled by the Party bringing the suit.  Each Party may be represented by counsel
of its choice at its own expense.  If a Party selects its own counsel in the conduct of such a suit, its counsel shall keep the other Party informed of the progress
and status of such suit.

20.                                 Indemnification and Insurance.

20.1         Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, each Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify, hold harmless and
defend the other Party (the “Indemnified Party”), its shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents and inventors against any and all claims, suits, losses,
liabilities, damages, costs, fees and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of any claim brought by a third party against
the Indemnified Party related to any actual or alleged (a) breach of a representation or warranty by the Indemnifying Party under this Agreement; (b) product
liability claim which is related to or arises out of the manufacture, marketing, distribution, sale or use of Licensed Products by the Indemnifying Party, except
to the extent attributable to the Indemnified Party’s breach of its representations and warranties provided in this Agreement; (c) willful misconduct or gross
negligence of the Indemnifying Party; or (d) breach of Section 27 (Confidentiality) by the Indemnifying Party.

20.2         Insurance.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, and to the extent applicable from and after the date of any use or sale of a Licensed
Product, each Party shall maintain commercially issued policies of insurance or, with the prior written approval of the other Party, programs of self-insurance
with financial reserves sufficient to support its obligations under this Agreement, which provide coverage and limits as required by statute or as necessary to
prudently insure the activities and operations of the insuring Party.  The commercial general liability insurance policy, or liability self-insurance program, shall
include the interests of the other Party as an additional insured and provide coverage limits of not less than $***** combined single limits as respects
premises, operations, contractual liability and, if applicable, liability arising out of products and/or completed operations.  Each Party shall provide the other
Party with certificates of insurance for commercially insured policies or evidence of self-insurance resources satisfactory to the other Party’s risk management
department.  It is expressly agreed that the insurance or self-insurance are minimum requirements which shall not in any way limit the liability of a Party.

20.3         Procedures.  If an Indemnified Party seeks indemnification under this Section 20, it shall give prompt written notice to the Indemnifying
Party of any claim covered by the foregoing duty of indemnification; provided, however, that a delay in such notice shall not terminate the duty of
indemnification hereunder, unless such delay shall have materially impaired the defense of such claim.  The Indemnifying Party shall have sole and exclusive
control of the defense of any such claim, including the choice and direction of any legal counsel.  In the event and for so long as a Party is actively contesting
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or defending against any claim in connection with this Section 20, the Indemnified Party shall cooperate with the Indemnifying Party and its counsel in the
contest or defense, make itself available, and provide such testimony and access to its books and records as shall be reasonably necessary in connection with
the contest or defense, all at the sole cost and expense of the Indemnifying Party.

21.                                 Notices.

Any notice or payment required to be given to either Party shall be deemed to have been properly given and to be effective (a) on the date of delivery
if delivered in person, (b) five (5) days after mailing if mailed by first-class certified mail, postage paid and deposited in the United States mail, to the
respective addresses given below, or to such other address as it shall designate by written notice given to the other Party, (c) on the date of delivery if delivered
by express delivery service such as Federal Express or DHL or (d) on the date of transmission if made by facsimile.

In the case of Eleos:                                                                                 Eleos, Inc.
One Valmont Plaza
Suite 301
Omaha, Nebraska 68154
Attn:  President
Facsimile Number:  402-255-5778

In the case of AVI:                                                                                            AVI BioPharma, Inc.
One SW Columbia, Suite 1105
Portland, Oregon 97258
Attn:  President
Facsimile Number:  503-227-0751

22.                                 Assignment.



This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the Parties and their respective Affiliates, successors and assigns.  No Party
may assign any of its rights or privileges or delegate any of its duties or obligations (by operation of law or otherwise) hereunder without prior written consent
of the other Party; provided, however, that either Party may make such an assignment or delegation in conjunction with (i) the acquisition of the Party or of all
or substantially all of the Party’s assets relating to this Agreement other than, in the case of Eleos, any of the foregoing involving Genta Incorporated, Idera
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (formerly Hybridon, Inc.), ISIS Pharmaceuticals, Inc. or any of their affiliates or (ii) a corporate restructuring or reorganization in which
such Party assigns its right, title and interest under this Agreement to an Affiliate.  Any attempted or purported assignment or transfer without such consent,
when required under this provision, shall be void and of no effect and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.

23.                                 Late Payments.

In the event any amounts due a Party hereunder, including but not limited to royalty payments, milestone payments, fees and patent cost
reimbursements, are not received when due except when prevented by force majeure, the paying Party shall pay to the other Party interest charges at a rate of
twelve (12) percent per annum or the highest rate permitted by law if less than 12%.  Such interest shall be calculated from the date payment was due until
actually received.
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24.                                 Waiver.

It is agreed that failure to enforce any provisions of this Agreement by a Party shall not be deemed a waiver of any breach or default hereunder by the
other Party.  It is further agreed that no express waiver by either Party hereto of any breach or default of any of the covenants or agreements herein set forth
shall be deemed a waiver as to any subsequent and/or similar breach or default.

25.                                 Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware without regard to its conflicts of law
provisions, but the scope and validity of any patent or patent application shall be governed by the applicable laws of the country of such patent or patent
application.

26.                                 Export Control Laws.

Each Party shall observe all applicable United States and foreign laws with respect to the transfer of Licensed Products and related technical data to
foreign countries, including the International Traffic in Arms Regulations (ITAR) and the Export Administration Regulations.

27.                                 Confidentiality

27.1         Nondisclosure and Non-Use.  Each Party shall keep all Confidential Information of the other Party supplied to or learned by it in the
strictest confidence and shall not disclose such Confidential Information to an unauthorized party.  Each Party shall take proper and appropriate steps to protect
such Confidential Information received or learned by it and its personnel, and shall use no less than a reasonable standard of care to protect such Confidential
Information.  Each Party shall limit disclosure and access to such Confidential Information to only those of its personnel who are directly involved with the
Party’s activities under this Agreement.  Each Party shall ensure that its personnel performing services under this Agreement or any Statement of Work or
having access to Confidential Information of the other Party shall preserve the confidential nature of such Confidential Information, and shall be primarily
liable for any breaches of the obligations of this Section 27 by its personnel.  Each Party will use all Confidential Information of the other Party only in
connection with the performance of the activities contemplated by this Agreement.

27.2         Exceptions.  This Section 27 shall not apply to any information that (a) is already known by the recipient at the time of its disclosure to the
recipient; (b) is publicly available or later becomes publicly available through no unauthorized or wrongful act; or (c) is disclosed to the recipient by a third
party having no similar confidentiality obligation.

27.3         Compelled Disclosure.  If a Party is required by law or court order to disclose Confidential Information of the other Party, it shall provide
the other Party with prompt written notice of such requirement so that an appropriate protective order or other relief may be sought.

27.4         Third-Party Information.  If any Confidential Information is supplied to a Party by a third party having a legal right to disclose it, then: (a)
the receiving Party shall have the right to use that portion of the Confidential Information so disclosed only in connection with work done for that third party;
and (b) such disclosure by that third party shall not place that portion of the Confidential Information in the public domain, and shall not relieve the receiving
Party of its obligations under this Agreement.
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27.5         Binding on Personnel.  Each Party shall provide to each of its personnel performing services under this Agreement notice of the
confidentiality and non-use restrictions contained in this Agreement prior to allowing such personnel to receive any Confidential Information from the other
Party or perform any services hereunder.

27.6         Equitable Relief.  Each Party acknowledges that a breach of this Section 27 would cause irreparable harm and injury to the other Party,
which harm and injury could not be adequately compensated for by damages.  Accordingly, in the event of such a breach, the Parties agree that each of them
shall be entitled, in its discretion and without posting a bond, to immediate injunctive relief in addition to any other remedies it might have, whether at law or
in equity.

27.7         Survival.  The obligations imposed by this Section 27 shall survive with respect to each item of Confidential Information so long as no
circumstance described in Section 27.2 has occurred.



28.                                 Dispute Resolution.

28.1         General.  Any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in this
Section 28, which shall be the sole and exclusive procedures for the resolution of any such disputes.

28.2         Negotiation.  The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement promptly by
negotiation between executives who have authority to settle the controversy and who are at a higher level of management than the persons with direct
responsibility for administration of this Agreement.  A Party may give the other Party written notice of any dispute not resolved in the normal course of
business.  Within 15 days after delivery of the notice, the receiving Party shall submit to the other a written response.  The notice and response shall include (a)
a statement of that Party’s position and a summary of arguments supporting that position, and (b) the name and title of the executive who will represent that
Party and of any other person who will accompany the executive.  Within 30 days after delivery of the initial notice, the executives of both Parties shall meet at
a mutually acceptable time and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to attempt to resolve the dispute.  All negotiations pursuant to
this Section 28.2 are confidential and shall be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of applicable rules of evidence.

28.3         Arbitration.  If the dispute has not been resolved by negotiation as provided herein within 45 days after delivery of the initial notice of
negotiation, or if the Parties failed to meet within 30 days after such delivery, the dispute shall be finally resolved by binding arbitration before three arbitrators
in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) then pertaining.  The three arbitrators shall be
appointed by the AAA and shall each be neutral, independent, disinterested, impartial and shall abide by the Code of Ethics for Arbitrators in Commercial
Disputes approved by the AAA.  The parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of the federal district court for the district in which the arbitration is held for the
enforcement of this provision and the entry of judgment on any award rendered hereunder.  Should such court for any reason lack jurisdiction, any court with
jurisdiction shall enforce this clause and enter judgment on any award.  The place of arbitration will be Denver, Colorado or such other neutral site as the
parties may jointly select.

28.4         Injunctive Relief.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 28, each Party shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief at any time in any
court of competent jurisdiction.
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29.                                 Force Majeure.

No Party shall be deemed to be in breach of this Agreement or otherwise be liable to the other Party by reason of any delay in performing or failure to
perform any obligations hereunder to the extent that such delay or failure was due to any event of force majeure of which it has notified the other Party, and the
time of performance of that obligation shall be extended accordingly.  If the event of force majeure prevails for a continuous period in excess of three months,
the Parties shall enter into bona fide discussions with a view to alleviating its effects or to agree to such alternative arrangements as may be fair and
reasonable.  Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the following without limitation shall be regarded as events of force majeure: acts of God;
explosions; floods; tempest; fires or accidents; war or threat of war; acts, restrictions or regulations of any government or governmental agency; import or
export regulations or embargoes; strikes or other labor troubles not limited to the labor force of the affected Party; difficulties in obtaining raw materials;
power failure or breakdowns in machinery or any other cause beyond the control of, or occurring without the fault of, the Party asserting the event of force
majeure.

30.                                 Miscellaneous

30.1         Headings.  The headings of the several articles are inserted for convenience of reference only and are not intended to be a part of or to affect
the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

30.2         Amendments.  No amendment or modification hereof shall be valid or binding upon the Parties unless made in writing and signed on behalf
of each Party by a duly authorized representative.

30.3         Entire Agreement.  This Agreement embodies the entire understanding of the Parties and shall supersede all previous and contemporaneous
communications, representations or understandings, either oral or written, between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof.

30.4         Judicial Modification.  In case any of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any
respect, (i) such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, (ii) the particular provision, to the extent permitted by law,
shall be reasonably construed and equitably reformed to be valid and enforceable and (iii) this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid or illegal or
unenforceable provisions had never been contained herein.

30.5         Press Releases.  The Parties shall use reasonable efforts to cooperate in issuing a joint press release upon execution of this Agreement and in
issuing further press releases related to this Agreement.  If at any time disclosure regarding this Agreement is required under public reporting requirements of
applicable securities laws and the Parties are not able to agree on the content and manner of issuing such disclosure, AVI, and Eleos if it becomes subject to
such public reporting requirements, will be authorized to issue a sole release.  Prior to issuing such a sole release, the disclosing Party shall provide the other
Party with an opportunity to review and comment on a draft of such release and will consider in good faith any comments that the other Party communicates in
a timely fashion on such draft press release.

30.6         Publications.  The Parties will be entitled to publish or present on the results of the research hereunder and any Product, provided that the
Party seeking to publish will deliver to the other Party for its review a copy of any proposed publication, poster or an abstract of any oral presentation at
scientific meetings involving any research or Product hereunder, or the Confidential Information of the other Party, at least forty-five (45) days prior to
submission of scientific publications or abstracts of oral presentations.  The reviewing Party will have the right to request that any of its Confidential
Information
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be deleted from such publication or presentation, and the disclosing Party will comply with that request.  If the disclosing Party does not receive any feedback
from the reviewing Party within that 45-day period, the disclosing Party will be free to proceed with the publication or presentation except that neither Party
may publish on the other Party’s exclusive Products without the prior written approval of the other Party, which may be given at that Party’s sole discretion.

30.7         Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

30.8         No Agency.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute one Party as the agent or representative of the other Party or both Parties as joint
venturers or partners.  Each Party is an independent contractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, both Parties have executed this Agreement, in duplicate originals, by their duly authorized representatives on the day and
year first written above.

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.
 

ELEOS, INC.
     
By:

  

By:
 

     
Name:

  

Name:
 

     
Title:

  

Title:
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Exhibit A

AVI Intellectual Property

***** Patents

1.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** - U.S. Patent No. *****

2.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. Patent No. *****

3.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** —  U.S. Patent No. *****

4.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. Patent No. *****

5.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled *****— CA *****, JP *****, AU *****, EP *****, KR *****

6.  Attorney Docket No. ***** ***** —EP *****

7.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — US Provisional Application *****

Delivery Technology

8 & 9.  Attorney Docket Nos. ***** and ***** entitled ***** — U.S. application ***** pending; corresponding CA, JP, AU, EP, KR applications

10.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** - U.S. application ***** pending; corresponding PCT application

11.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. application ***** pending; corresponding PCT application

12.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. application ***** pending; corresponding CA, AU, EP applications

p53-Related

13.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. Patent No. *****; EP Patent No. *****; AU Patent No. *****; corresponding CA, JP, KR applications

Licensed Intellectual Property

14 & 15.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. Patent Nos. *****, *****and *****; EP Patent No. *****; corresponding CA, JP applications
(Licensed from *****)

16.  Attorney Docket No. ***** — U.S. Patent No.  ***** (*****)

17.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** - U.S. Patent No. *****; AU Patent No. *****; EP Patent No. ***** (*****)



18.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. Patent No. ***** (*****)

19.  Attorney Docket No. ***** entitled ***** — U.S. Patent No. ***** (*****)

 

2

Exhibit B

Eleos Intellectual Property

1)  Patents and Inventions Subject to Exclusive Licensing Agreements:
A.           Sublicense Agreement between ***** and Eleos, Inc. *****.
B.             Amendment to License Agreement between ***** on behalf of ***** and Eleos dated *****.

2)  Eleos Patents and Inventions Exclusively Licensed from *****

A.  ***** Sublicensed Patents:

1a.  *****
  
Patent Number *****
  
Issued *****
  
Priority Date *****
  
Inventor *****
  
Assignee *****
  
Broad Claims *****.
 

·                  The foreign counterparts of patent 1a. are pending in Europe, Canada and Japan.  In addition, the option to generate a divisional of this patent has been
taken.  This divisional belongs to ***** and has broader claims, including *****.  This divisional is licensed to Eleos Inc.

2a.  *****
  
Patent Number *****
  
Issued *****
  
Priority Date *****
  
Inventor *****
  
Assignee *****
  
Broad Claims (1)  *****.

(2)  *****.
 

·                  The foreign counterparts of patent 2a. have been filed independently of 2a.  National filings are Europe, Canada and Australia.  The claims dealing with
***** are not being pursued in foreign filings because of prior art.  The principle claims in the foreign applications are for *****.

B-1

 
3a.  *****
  
Patent Number *****
  
Issued *****
  
Priority Date *****
  
Inventor *****
  
Assignee *****



  
Broad Claims (1)  *****.

(2)  *****.
(3)  *****.

 

·                  The foreign counterparts of patent 3a. are pending in Europe, Canada, Australia and Japan.

4a.  *****
  
Patent Number *****
  
Issued *****
  
Priority Date *****
  
Inventor *****
  
Assignee *****
  
Broad Claims *****
 

·                  The foreign counterparts of patent 4a. are pending in Europe, Canada, Australia and Japan.

B.  *****:

1b.  *****
  
Patent Number *****
  
Issued *****
  
Priority Date *****
  
Inventor *****
  
Assignee *****
  
Broad Claims *****
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2b.  *****
  
Patent Number *****
  
Issued *****
  
Priority Date *****
  
Inventor *****
  
Assignee *****
  
Broad Claims (1)  *****.

(2)  *****.
 

·                  The foreign counterpart of patents 1b. and 2b. is European patent #*****, which is issued in 13 countries with an expiration date of *****.  Issued patents
have also been obtained in Canada and Australia.

2)  Eleos Additional Patents and Inventions Exclusively Licensed from *****:

 

*****
  
Application Number *****
  
Issued Pending (first divisional has been allowed others are pending)
  
Priority Date *****
  



Inventor *****
  
Assignee *****
  
Broad Claims (1)  *****.

(2)  *****
(3)  *****
(4)  *****
(5)  *****
(6)  *****
(7)  *****
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Exhibit 10.59

EXECUTION COPY

SEPARATION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT

THIS SEPARATION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is between Denis R. Burger, Ph.D (“Employee”) and AVI BioPharma, Inc.
(“Employer”), and is effective eight (8) days after Employee signs this Agreement (“Effective Date”).

The parties agree as follows:

1.            Resignation. Employee resigned his position as Employer’s Chief Executive Officer, effective March 27, 2007 (the “Resignation Date”).
Employee has been paid his salary and other compensation through March 27, 2007, less all lawful or required deductions.

2.            Consideration.

2.1           Employer will pay Employee an amount equivalent to eighteen (18) months base salary of $375,000, which is equivalent to
$562,500 (“Severance Funds”). The Severance Funds will be paid in equal installments in accordance with Employer’s the normal
payroll policies over the life of the severance period.

2.2           In addition to payment of the Severance Funds, Employer will extend the exercise date to March 28, 2010 of all options to purchase
shares of Employer’s common stock previously granted to Employee, the terms of which are set forth on attached Schedule I (the
“Options”). Employer and Employee note that the effect of extending the exercise period of Incentive Stock Options will be to
convert such options to Non-Qualified Options under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

2.3           In addition to the Severance Funds and the treatment of Options as described above, for eighteen months from the effective date
hereof, at its option Employer shall either (a) continue to provide the same health insurance coverage it currently offers to Employee
or (b) will reimburse Employee for all COBRA payments.

3.            Return of Company Property. Employee represents that he has returned all Employer property in his possession or under his control,
including but not limited to keys, credit cards, files, laptop computer and any and all Company documents.

4.            Confidentiality. The parties will use reasonable efforts to keep the terms of this Agreement confidential. Employee may disclose the terms of
this Agreement to his immediate family. Employer may disclose the terms of this Agreement to its officers and managers. Either party may disclose the terms
of this Agreement to their respective attorneys, accountants, financial advisers, auditors, or similar advisors, or in response to government requests.   Third
persons

informed of the terms of this Agreement shall in turn be advised of this confidentiality provision and requested to maintain such confidentiality.

5.            Release.

5.1           In exchange for the consideration paid to Employee as set forth in this Agreement, Employee forever releases and discharges
Employer, any of Employer-sponsored employee benefit plans in which Employee participates, or was participating in, (collectively
the “Plans”) and all of their respective officers, members, managers, partners, directors, trustees, agents, employees, and all of their
successors and assigns (collectively “Releasees”) from any and all claims, actions, causes of action, rights, or damages, including
costs and attorneys’ fees (collectively “Claims”) which Employee may have arising out of his employment (including Claims that
may arise out of Employee’s employment agreement), on behalf of himself, known, unknown, or later discovered which arose prior
to the date Employee signs this Agreement. This release includes but is not limited to, any Claims under any local, state, or federal
laws prohibiting discrimination in employment, including without limitation the Civil Rights Acts, or the Oregon State Law Against
Discrimination, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, or Claims under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act, or Claims alleging any legal restriction on Employer’s right to terminate its employees, any
Claims Employee has relating to his rights to or against any of the Plans, or personal injury Claims, including without limitation
wrongful discharge, breach of contract, defamation, tortious interference with business expectancy, constructive discharge, or
infliction of emotional distress. Employee represents that he has not filed any Claim against Employer or its Releasees, he has no
knowledge of any facts that would support any Claim by Employee against Employer or by a third party against Employer, and that
he will file a Claim at any time in the future concerning Claims released in this Agreement; provided, however, that this will not
limit Employee from filing a Claim to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

5.2           In consideration of the promises of Employee as set forth herein, Employer does hereby, and for its successors and assigns, release,
acquit and forever discharge Employee from any and all actions, causes of action, obligations, costs, expenses, damages, losses,
claims, liabilities, suits, debts, and demands (including attorneys’ fees and costs actually incurred), of whatever character in law or
in equity known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, from the beginning of time to the date of execution hereof.
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6.             Non-disparagement. Employee and Employer each agree not to make disparaging statements about each other, except in the case of
Employer statements that are required under applicable federal or state securities laws or applicable rules and regulations of any exchange on which
Employer’s stock is traded.



7.            Consideration and Revocation Periods. Employee understands and acknowledges the significance and consequences of this Agreement,
that it is voluntary, that it has not been given as a result of any coercion, and expressly confirms that it is to be given full force and effect according to all of its
terms, including those relating to unknown Claims. Employee was hereby advised of his right to seek the advice of an attorney prior to signing this Agreement.
Employee acknowledges that he has signed this Agreement only after full reflection and analysis. Although he is free to sign this Agreement before then,
Employee acknowledges he was given at least 21 days after receipt of this document in which to consider it (the “Consideration Period”). If Employee
executes this Agreement prior to the end of the Consideration Period, Employee hereby waives any rights associated therewith. Employee may revoke this
Agreement seven (7) days after signing it and forfeit all benefits described in paragraph 2 of this Agreement. Employee and Employer agree that any changes
made to this Agreement during the Consideration Period as a result of negotiations between the parties do not restart the running of the Consideration Period.

8.            No Liability. This Agreement shall not be construed as an admission by either party that it acted wrongfully with respect to the other.

9.            Severability. If any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless
continue to be valid and enforceable.

10.          Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents and contains the entire understanding between the parties in connection with its subject
matter. All other prior written or oral agreements or understandings are merged into and superseded by this Agreement. Employee acknowledges that in
signing this Agreement, he has not relied upon any representation or statement not set forth in this Agreement made by Employer or any of its representatives.

11.          Attorney Fees. If any suit or action is filed by either party to enforce this Agreement or otherwise with respect to the subject matter hereof,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney fees incurred in preparation or in prosecution or defense of such suit or action as fixed by
the trial court, and if any appeal is taken from the decision of the trial court, reasonable attorney fees as fixed by the appellate court.

12.          Choice of Law. This Agreement is made and shall be construed and performed under the laws of the State of Oregon.
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EXECUTION COPY

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY. THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES A RELEASE OF CERTAIN KNOWN OR UNKNOWN CLAIMS.

DATED this 27  day of March, 2007.
 

DATED this 27  day of March, 2007.
   
   
AVI BioPharma, Inc.

  

   
By: /s/ Jack Bowman

  

/s/ Denis R.Burger, Ph.D
 

Name: Jack Bowman
 

Denis R.Burger, Ph.D
   
Its: Chairman
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, K. Michael Forrest, certify that:

1.               I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of AVI BioPharma, Inc. (the “Registrant”);

2.               Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.               Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.               The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 (f) and 15d-15 (f))
for the registrant and have:

(a)          Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; and

(b)         Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and

(c)          Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)         Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.               The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)          All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)         Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date:    May 10, 2007
  

   
 

By: /s/    K. Michael Forrest
  

K. Michael Forrest,
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
 

 



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark M. Webber, certify that:

1.               I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of AVI BioPharma, Inc. (the “Registrant”);

2.               Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.               Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.               The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 (f) and 15d-15 (f))
for the registrant and have:

(a)          Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; and

(b)         Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and

(c)          Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)         Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.               The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)          All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)         Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date:    May 10, 2007
  

   
 

By: /s/    Mark M. Webber
  

Mark M. Webber,
Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Information Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
 

 



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF CEO AND CFO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of AVI BioPharma, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2007 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, K. Michael Forrest, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Mark M.
Webber, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge,:

                    (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

                    (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

/s/ K. Michael Forrest
 

K. Michael Forrest
 

Chief Executive Officer
 

AVI BioPharma, Inc.
 

May 10, 2007
 

  
/s/ Mark M. Webber

 

Mark M. Webber
 

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Information Officer
 

AVI BioPharma, Inc.
 

May 10, 2007
 

 

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of §18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

See also the certification pursuant to Sec. 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which is also attached to this Report.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to AVI BioPharma, Inc. and will be
retained by AVI BioPharma, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

 


